
JUL09'19 Afil0:01 DflS

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Christine L. SantaniclJo

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9474 1.800.«52.3345 Ext 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.tih.gov

June 27. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
and Supportive'Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program in an amount not to exceed $668,260, effective August 1,2019, or upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later, through July 31, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Project
Name

Vendor # Location
SFY 2020

Amount

SFY 2021

Amount

Total

Amount

Cross Roads

House, Inc.

Permanent

Supportive
Housing,
Expansion
Program

177203-8003

Eastern

Rockingham,
Strafford &

Merrimack

Counties

$351,102 $31,918 $383,020

The Mental

Health Center for

Southern New

Hampshire dba
CLM Center for

Life Management

Shelter

Plus Care 1,

Permanent

Housing
Program

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$261,470 $23,770 $285,240

Total 612,572 55,688 $668,260

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020, and are anticipated
to be available in SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD
/

$612,572

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $55,688

Total $668,260
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The attached agreements represent two (02) of thirty (30) total agreements, many of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughout the state
to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing sen/ices through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care
Program.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services targeted to serve a minimum of fifty-three (53) participants from August 1, 2019 through July 31,
2020.

Using the "Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize participant's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes;

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in
the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required by
law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information
System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of each of these contracts, the Department reserves the right to
extend each agreement for up to two (02) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing,
and Supportive Services for New Hampshire homeless Individuals and families may not be available in
their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local
welfare authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families to become homeless.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

Area served: Rockingham, Strafford & Merrimack Counties; a minimum of fifty-three (53)
individuals will be served.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject; Continuum of Care. CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program. SS-2020-BHS-04-Penna-07

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Cross Roads House, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-436-2218

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Dale

July 31,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$383,020

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory1.11 Contractor Signature

>r-

-B, County of fZ,o Kattn.1.13 Acknowledgement; State of AJ H

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person id< or^Qmfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he exMi^d this decement in th'^t^acity
indicated in block 1.12. ■ I4 <0, \0.

,  L/B\- • <v,

h' ; lc.^^/V

13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

fSeal] AMP^

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

oochesne.i^
atureency

1.16 Approval by Bie l\H. Department ot Adminil

L15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

AdminihVation, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable) ' ' —

Director, On;

1.17 Approval by tji^Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

// On;

1.18 Approval 6y the

By:

and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreerhent
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

' 5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No, 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services, The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days affer giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with fnnds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or oti behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials

Date



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewa[(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. .Each certiflcate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to,secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor,

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to^the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of constmction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional-provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court or^ders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NORA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into, the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit .1 for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies' who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

CRH/CCEH PSH Expansion Exhibit A Contractor Initials
SFYs 2020-2021

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07 Page 1 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program delivering
scattered-site, long-term, tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive services to at least
twenty-eight (28) chronically homeless (CH) and disabled adults in Eastern Rockingham,
Strafford, and Merrimack Counties, and which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not irhposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

CRH/CCEH PSH Expansion Exhibit A Contractor Initiais
SFYs 2020-2021

SS-2020-8HS-04-PERMA-07 Pago 2 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further dorhestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written

• observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional frorn whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, votcemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Sen/ices Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.96(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24.CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply arid retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1.\ The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furtherina Fair Housinc bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentialitv. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in .particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by 8HS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Up to eighty-five percent (85%) of participants remain-in permanent housing (PH) as of the
end of the operating year;

6.2.1.2. Ninety percent (90%) of participants, age eighteen (18) years and older, maintain or
increase their total income at the end of the operating year or program exit.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITiONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees.to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8. Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows;

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0095L1T001803

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title; Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. August 1, 2019-July 31, 2020, nottoexceed $383,020

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $68,354

1.2.8.2. Rental Assistance: $305,736

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $8.930

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $383,020

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $97,988

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service In compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200,,

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule; Review by the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.

CRH/CCEH PSH Expansion Exhibit B Contractor initia
SFYs 2020-2021

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07 Page 2 of 10 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 8.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

;

housinQSUPPortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.aov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Eligibility

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Operatino Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
.  the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and cornprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. . Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attomeys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation In matters that interfere with homeless Individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed Items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
. medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as Identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and Individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatlent detoxification and other Inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15): ^
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating

' assistance through other federal, State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent'may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, • nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through.578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasino:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HDD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, In an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 678.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management Svstem

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies" to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shali maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sul>-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or-for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment .
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates .charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions arid orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3.. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the Unite"d States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. 'Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initial
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and'shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations. r

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the'pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to prov[de to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
. policies, etc. are referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement. Is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be .required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account{s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltloned to having services delivered by another
entity Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Contractor InitI

cu/DHHSA)S04is Page 1 of 1 Oat



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARtMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a'drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact iipoh which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor
Workplace Requirements

cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name; 0^0^-3 .JVi c

Datb 'f Name:
Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Ol055 .XKc

GUil
Dat Name:

Title: -Q iV r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSiBiLiTY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

iNSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluhtary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

OllSS Roads \

akilh
Date Nafhe.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Erhployment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations ~ Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: 0^05^

Datd I Name:

Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: X'h.o

Dat
m

Title-^' CS-k)-r>-«^
vDi^-e —
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but hot limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibil I
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Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving ̂ 1
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
' obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busines^ n
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatioh(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation

of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

0. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVllscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall-have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA-, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Pt'bvisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Cy\0S5 ^VodS j -
Name of the VendorT ktate

Signature of Auth((rltod Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

rAn V^MT
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certi^cation:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Dm? Name: ,

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Accountabiiity And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: \1I 77 V ̂7^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" .means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card.Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder, \

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or rnisplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means infonnation which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

'4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this.Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption.. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services^ also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within'the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing ah SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and, access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidentiai information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply witli all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreerhents as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New .Hampshire, do hereby certify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE,

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 24, 1982. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62166

Certificate Number: 0004493705

a&.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOth day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. 8€v-i 6+- Teftn, do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _ Cross hfoUA^, JTnc .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on
MDat6)(Dat^

RESOLVED: That the C-uchV-g-. ^
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of ^ , 20 1*^
(Date Contract Signed)

4. . is the duly elected (
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Sigr^afiJre of the*HT5Ctecl Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of . 20 .

By
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

Not stice of the Peace

qT A/?.
CD
CO

/C>

OS

HAMy

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



A^CCMCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEtMMOOrrVYY)

4/19/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rifihts to the certificate holder in Mou of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER RSC Insurance Brokerage, Inc.
1 New Hampshire Avenue, Suite 340
Portsmouth, NH 03801

eONTACI
NAMr;

16031778-6985' Kit noI: /6031778-6987
e^iL
ADDRSSB:

INSURERrS) AFFOROmO COVERAOE NAICI

wsuRBRA: PhOadslDhla Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

IKSURfiO

Cross Roads House, Inc
600 Lafayette Rd.
Portsmouth NH 03801-5435

iMSURSR a; RrstComo Insurance Comt>snv 27626

INSURER c:

INSURER 0:

INSURER e

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 48219078 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTlFy THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATEO. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VVHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSR
LTR TYREOFINSURAfKE
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ihsdIwvtj POUCYNUMBER
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Crirrte (Employee Theft)
Thefl of Money & Securities (I/O)
Comouter Fraud

PHPKig28284

PHPK1928284
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Stale of New Hampshire
Dept of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Homeiess & Housing
129 Pleasant St
Concord NH 03301

>

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE OEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORizEORepReseNTAnvfi -

MichBsl Christian

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
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e 1966-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CROSS
ROADS

HOUSE

About Cross Roads House

We're local people helping each other.

Since 1982, Cross Roads House has been providing emergency and transitional shelter
to homeless men, women, and children in the New Hampshire Seacoast area. We are
guided by our mission, to meet the immediate needs of homeless families and
individuals, and to.provide them with the tools and guidance they need to successfully
return to permanent housing. We currently house approximately 100 people on any
given night, and our emergency shelter is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
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Sanders & Karcher

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cross Roads House, Trie,

(a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2018 which comprise the statement of
financial position and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's "judgment, including the assessment of the ris)<s of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's

internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. »
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc. as of June
30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for. the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Cos^arative Information

We have previously audited Cross Roads House, Inc.'s financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated September 12, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

October 16, 2018
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

2018 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated

depreciation'of $1,537,549 & $1,382,026,

respectively

OTHER ASSETS

Closing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $1,502 & $1,297, respectively

cash and marketable securities, long-term reserve
Beneficial interest in assets held by others
Cash and cash equivalents, operating reserve

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

296,061 $ 360,278
3,886

135,467

194,075

44,853
674,342

4,935,034

3,097

757,367

134,758

126,746

1,021,968

2, 429

67,350

242,675

54,288
727,020

4,639,205

57

672,926

130,525

125,458

928,966

$  6.631.344 $ 6,295.191

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deferred income

Long-term debt, current portion
Accrued payroll items

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Designated

Undesignated

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

32,133

25,000

23,672

52,530

133,335

601,639

734,974

884,113

4,791,499

86,000

134,758

5,896,370

6. 631. 344

18,5.15

41,449

14,295

40,726

114,985

197,995

312,980

798,384

4,882,302

171,000

130,525

5,982,211

6.295.191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years ended June 30,

2018 2017

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES:

PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants
Donations

Fundraising, net of direct expenses of $63,137
and $46,365, respectively

Total public support
/

REVENUES

Investment return

.Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

EXPENSES

Program services
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN OPERATING NET ASSETS BEFORE DEPRECIATION

Less depreciation and amortization

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING NET ASSETS

BUILDING SUPPORT

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Public support
Restrictions satisfied by use

DECREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED ASSETS

Investment return

Distributions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED

NET ASSETS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year

NET ASSETS, End of year

535,348
589,882

465,703

499,636
632,635

356,930

1,590,933 1,489,201

59,788

59,788

1,650,721

50,182

50,182

1,539,383

1,198,072

288,636

98,360

1,585,068

1,021,113

213,553

89,026

1,323,692

65,653

155,727

215,691

154,461

90,074) 61,230

"85,000 25,000

5,074) 86,230

463,090

548,090)

85,000)

479,155

(  504,155)

(  25,000)

9, 338

5,105)

15,547

(  5,366)

4, 233 10,181

85,841) 71,411

5,982,211 5,910,800

5,896,370 $  5,982,211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30,

2018 2017

Program General Fund-

Services and' Admin Raising Total Total

Management salaries $  65,781 $  148,427 $ 25,575 S  239,783 $ 237,036
Salaries and wages 537,287 11,523 38,123 586,933 507,130
Employee benefits 72,671 44,024 1,002 117,697 99,054
Payroll taxes 49,108 12,796 5,096 67,000 59,555
Professional fees 1,666 14,996 - 16,662 .  12,868
Bad debt - - 2,975 2,975 7,359
Advertising and promotion - - 2,903 2, 903 5,630
Office and administration 9,869 28,894 10,387 49,150 52,748
Heat 17,989 1,000 999 19,988 14,221
Electricity 31,806 1,748 1,747 35,301 30,274
Water and sewer 25,590 1,179 1,179 27,948 23,566
Repairs and maintenance 87,662 4, 871 4,871 97,404 71,758
Interest 12,675 704 704 14,083 8,435
Insurance 28,572 1,588 1,587 31,747 28,033
Food 37,063 - - 37,063 30,759
Direct services 211,889 5,250 - 217,139 120,208
Telephone 1,010 7,884 1,212 10,106 6,056
Volunteer development - 2,926 - 2,926 2,798
Staff and program development 7, 434 826 - 8,260 6,204

TOTALS BEFORE DEPREC £ AMORT 1,198,072 288,636 98,360 1,585,068 1,323,692

Depreciation £ amortization 138,811 9,204 7,712 155,727 154,461

TOTALS S 297.840 $ 106.072 S  1,740,79.5 S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years'Ended June 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from public support
Cash received from investment return

Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Cash paid for interest

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net unrealized investment gain (loss)
Cash paid for property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from borrowings
Cash paid for debt reduction

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR

$  1,410,801 $ 1,324,889

64,021 60,364

( 1, 524, 091) ( 1, 340, 871)

(  13,361) 8,434)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ( 62,630)

39,9,88

454,596)

414,608)

413,021

64,217)

360,278

35,948

35,897

98,145)

62,248)

625,000

(  211,979) ( 13,710)

(  13,710)

(  40,010)

400,288

296.061 $ 360.278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in net assets $( 85,841) $ 71,411

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash from operating activities:

Net unrealized investment gain { 39,988) { 35,897)
Depreciation expense 155,522 154,236
Amortization expense 205 225

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable ( 1,457) ( 2,429)

Grants receivable ( 68,117) ( 56,297)

Unconditional promises to give - 48,500 33,075
Prepaid expenses 9,435 ( 8,039)
Beneficial interest in assets held by others ( 4,233) ( 10,181)
Cash and cash equivalents, operating reserve ( 1,288) ( 389)
Cash and mar)cetable securities', long-term reserve ( 84, 441) ( 70, 813)

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 13,618 ( 22,266)
Deferred income ( 16,449) ( 13,736)

Accrued payroll items 11,804 ( 2,952)

Total adjustments 23,211 ( 35,463)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $( 62.630) $ 35.948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE A.- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982, but
was essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to
provide safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire.

Basis of. Accouhtin'g*y
Income"and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is
recognized as it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Cross Roads House received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the
Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualified as a non-profit
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore,
it is not subject to income tax. Cross Roads House is classified as other than a

private foundation.

Financial Statement Presentation

Cross Roads House presents its financial statements in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification No. 958-210, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit

Organizations". Under ASC No. 958-210, Cross Roads House is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition. Cross Roads House is
required to present a statement of cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments
with a per share value constant at one dollar are considered to be cash

equivalents. Cash equivalents were $126,804 and $137,357 as of June 30, 2018 and
2017.

4

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the State in support of
homeless operations. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017 management

considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance
for doubtful accounts is required.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 16, 2018 the date the
financial statements were available to be- issued. A housing discrimination suit
was filed on July 13, 2017 with the New Hampshire Commission on Human Rights by a
former resident. All charges have been denied and management maintains that the
allegations are without merit. The insurance company has engaged an attorney who
does not view the charge to fall within the definition of materiality, as the

organization is insured for the claim and as the claim appears to lack in
significant merit. The organization purchased twelve single room occupancy rental
units in Portsmouth, New Hampshire in May 2018 that became available for rent
after the end of the fiscal year.

Promises to Give/Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Cross
Roads House that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions- that are

restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if
the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the
restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on

historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding unconditional
pledges at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2018, management considers all
pledges to be fully collectible.

All unconditional promises to give are current and consist of the following, as.
of June 30,

Capital campaign
Wentworth Gala event

2018

$  86,000

108,075

2017

171,000

71,675

TOTALS $  194.075 $ 242.675

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Contributions

Cross Roads House records its contributions as unrestricted, temporarily
restricted, or •permanently restricted support depending on the existence or
nature of any donor restrictions.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been

purchased, and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been

donated. The cost of buildings and improvements- is recovered using the straight-

line method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture,

fixtures and equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of 2 . to 7 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2018

consisted of the following:

Land and improvements '$ 217,266
Buildings and improvements 6,065,715
Furniture and equipment 189,602
Total property and equipment 6,472,583
Less accumulated depreciation 1,537,549

Property and equipment, net $ 4.935.034

Donated Services

Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are

provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be

purchased if not provided by donation. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and

2017, there were no amounts for donated services.

Donated Materials

Donated marketable securities and property and equipment are valued at fair

market value. Marketable securities are immediately sold and are included in the
statement of activities as donations. Donated securities were received and valued

as follows during the years ended June 30,
2018 2017

Marketable securities $ 31,970 $ 27,311

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Organization's investments as of June 30, 2018 are stated at fair value.
Shares of the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices,
which represent the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest

income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-

dividehd date. As of June 30, 2018, investments have a market value of $884,113,

cost basis of $844,142 and unrealized gains of $39,971.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution
establishing this fund, property contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation is held' as a separate fund designated for the- benefit of Cross Roads
House. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions
from the fund to Cross Road's House. The distributions are 4.03% of the market

value of the fund per year.

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years ended
June 30,

2018 2017

Beginning, fair value, 7/1 $ 130,525 S 120,344
Total return 10,227 16,415
Foundation fee ( 889) ( 868)

Distributions ( 5,105) ( 5,366)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 $ 134.758 $ 130.525

Distributions represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown as

unrestricted dividends.

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Cross Roads House •records its marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values and' all investments in debt securities at their- fair values in the

statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
change in net-assets, in the statement of activities.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value.

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at
the closing price- reported on the active market on which the individual

securities are traded.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end. ^

The methods described,above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.

Furthermore, while the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial-
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

The Organization reports under the Fair Value Measurements, which
established a framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices inactive markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (level 3 measurements).

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the

ability to access.

Investments, all at level 1, at fair value as of consisted of the following:

2018 2017 .

Cash & equivalents $ 126,804 $  137,357

Domestic equities 369,057 338,591

Domestic fixed income 271,664 220,534

International fixed income 116,588 101,902
TOTALS S 884.113 $ 798.384

NOTE D - ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS

Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as of the years ended June
30,

2018 2017

Payroll and-payroll taxes $ 4,382 $ 929

Earned time 48, 148 39, 797

Totals S 52.530 $ 40.726

NOTE E - LINE OF CREDIT

The organization has established a $300,000 line of credit with Provident
Bank with a current interest rate of 5.25%. The interest rate is directly

tied to the wall Street Journal Prime Rate with no margin. Accordingly, any
changes to this rate will change the organization's line of credit rate.
There was no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2018.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT

Current Long-term Total

Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $1,293, 4.69% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
August 2037. $ 6,519 $ 188,383 $ 194,902

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $2,070, 5.62% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
March 2038. 8,493 285,183 294,676

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $942, 6.29% 'interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
May 2038. 3,450 124,872 128,322

Note payable, NH Community Development
Authority, monthly payment is $443, 2.00%
interest; secured by property; note
matures November 2019. 5,210 2,201 7,411

Total long-term debt $ 23.672 $ 601.639 $ 625.311

Future principal loan payments are as follows for the years ended,

June 30, 2019 $ 23, 672

202 0 21,689

202 1 20,571

2022 21, 715

202 3 22,924

Thereafter. . . 514,740

NOTE G - UNRESTRICTED BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

•The Board of Directors of Cross Roads House has approved the following

designations of net assets as of June 30,
2018 2017

Long-term reserve $ 757,367 $ 672,926
Operating reserve 126,746 125,458
Totals $ 884.113 $ 798.384

Board designated long-term -reserve represents amounts held to enhance the
capitalization of Cross Roads House. Unrestricted board designated net
assets may not be liquidated or expended without the approval of the Board of
Directors.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE H - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets total $86,000, all of which is available

for the capital campaign.

NOTE I - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2018, Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by a bank that
is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for $250,000, any
amount in excess is fully covered by the Massachusetts Depositors Insurance
Fund.

Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm
that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.

Cross Roads House derived 32% of its operating revenue from government
agencies.

NOTE J - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cross Roads House receives money under various state and federal grants.
"Under the terms of these grants. Cross Roads House is required to use the
money within the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal.
If expenditures of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance
with the proposal, Cross Roads House may be required to repay the grantor's
funds.
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CRH goy«^ o.p bifector^ Fyi5
Name Affiliation* Town of Residence Committees

Term

Began

Term

Ends

Adams, Michael Architect Greenland Building 2016 2019

Ade, Richard Ocean Properties Ltd. Portsmouth Program 201 1 2020

Allison, Tim UNH Portsmouth Development 2012 2019

Bresette, Suzanne Stratbg^ Partners North Hampton Executive, Development 2007 2019

Brown, Bob

Treasurer

Self

employed/consultant North Hampton Finance 201 1 2020

Campbell, Eric

Bottomline

Technologies, inc. York, ME Program 2015 2021

Cloutier, Denis CSNH New Castle Program, Building 2012 2019

Cohen, Ken Psychiatrist Kensington Program 2013 2019

Dillon, Denis McLane Middleton Rye

Executive, Finance,

Nominating &

Governance, Development 2004 2021

Drew, Kathryn

Merrill Lynch Wealth

Management/Bank of

America Corp. Rye Nominating & Governance 1999 ■  2021

Martindale, Vivan Retired Hampton Executive, Program 2006 2019

Moore, Vanda

Secretary Sprague Energy Greenland Executive, Development 2013 2019

Scourby, Lex

Chicken of the Sea

Frozen Foods Portsmouth

Executive, Finance,

Nominating &

Governance, Development 2003 2021

Sllva, Chuck

Albany International,

Corp. Portsmouth Nominating & Governance 2015 2021

St. Jean, Ben

President

Clipper Strategic

Consulting, LLC Portsmouth

Executive, Finance,

Building 2015 2021

St. Martin, Joe

Vice President

Pro Resins & Colors,

Inc. Exeter Executive, Finance 2015 2019

Mary Lee

Worboys Retired Durham Program 2011 2020



Martha E. Stone

EXPERIENCE

7/13 - present Executive Director. Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

Chief executive of 96+ bed not-for-profit homeless shelter. Oversee and manage annual
budget of $1.5M and shelter operations. Maintain relationships with state and municipal
authorities, and ensure regulatory compliance. Manage federal, state, municipal and private
grant solicitations, contract compliance, and reporting. Direct fundraising activities and
supervise development staff. Provide executive-level advocacy with medical, social service,
and government agencies.

1/04 - 7/13 Development Director. Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH
/

Raise $600,000+ annually to support shelter operations. Responsible for planning and
implementing all fundraising activities including individual and corporate giving, direct mail
appeals, special events, corporate & foundation grants, and planned giving. Oversee volunteer
activities, donor database management, and gift processing. Plan and execute donor stewardship
activities and events. Design and produce marketing materials. Represent organization at
community events and manage public relations activities. Work closely with Board of Directors
to set and achieve fundraising goals. From 2007- 2009 managed a $5M capital campaign to fund
the design and construction of a new shelter facility.

7/94-1/04 Co-Owner. Stone Signs & Designs, Portsmouth, NH

Manage all financial records including accounts payable and receivable; involved in strategic
planning and goal setting; created and maintained customer database.

7/94-1/04 Co-Owner and Propertv Manager. Stone Properties, Greenland, NH

Own and operate multiple residential and commercial properties in the Seacoast; maintain
financial records including accounts payable and receivable, schedule and coordinate all aspects
of maintenance for buildings, interview and process all tenant applications; handle tenant needs.

3/92-6/94 Marketing Manager. Healthsource, Concord, NH

Supervised staff of eleven; oversaw the servicing and retention of over 400 accounts by closely
monitoring all account renewal activities; created marketing strategies to increase annual
membership; designed and developed service program including manuals for client use; trained
new Account Managers in all aspects of the position including: negotiating, presentation skills,
and conflict resolution; regularly conducted presentations for clients explaining health benefits
and policy changes.

10/89-3/92 Marketing Representative. Healthsource, Concord, NH

Accountable for renewing and retaining 75 accounts; executed enrollment activities by:
gathering underwriting data, presenting benefit plans to both employers and employees in group
settings, and negotiating annual contracts; sold health insurance products to new employers.

3/89-10/89 Marketing Representative. Beacon Health, Greenland, NH



Serviced existing accounts by coordinating enrollment activities including: developing annual
rates, conducting group presentations, and designing marketing materials; sold HMO product to
employer groups; actively participated in management team meetings; supervised administrative
assistant.

5/87-3/89 Marketing Assistant. Hardenburgh-Marks Inc., Boston, MA

Imported and marketed high end gift merchandise; supervised public relations activities;
designed and produced literature for new products; prepared for and traveled to trade shows;
sold directly to buyers; provided customer service to retail clients.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts. Communications: May 1987
Boston College. Chestnut Hill, MA Honors: Magna Cum Laude

Temple Universitv. London, England
Spring Semester Abroad, Communications and Theater Program 1986

COMPUTER

SKILLS

Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, Constant Contact, Raiser's Edge fundraising software

COMMUNITY

INVOLVEMENT

9/17-present NH Governor's Interagencv Council on Homelessness. Concord. NH
2/17-present Housing Action NH. Governing Council, Concord, NH
5/14-present Balance of State Continuum of Care. Executive Committee Co-Chair, Concord, NH
7/12-present Greater Seacoast Coalition to End Homelessness. Steering Committee, Portsmouth, NH
3/08-present Seacoast Half Marathon. Committee Member, Portsmouth, NH
2/04-3/15 Greenland Central School. School Board Member, OreenlanH NT4
9/ 00-6/03 Greenland Central School Parent Organization. President & VP, Greenland, NH
1998-99 Mothers & More. Co-Leader. Portsmouth NH

1998-99 Seacoast Parenting Conference. Fundraising & Hospitality Committees, Portsmouth, NH



Susan Darling Duchesney

ExperfencG 2002-Current

Finance Director Cross Roads House

Manage accounting Including payroll, government reporting and
audit preparation as well as human resources functions for major
seacoast nonprofit.

Education

1996-Current AA Associates Portsmouth, NH

Accounting Consultant

Manage small business accounting in various industries. Types of
businesses Include construction, property management, restaurants,
athletic clubs, and personal service corporations.

Consult with clients regarding budgeting, corporate development,
general operations, and equity analysis.

Set up and provide technical assistance on Quickbooks systems.

Priorto 1996-

Fiscai Director of major nonprofit organizations
including North Shore Elder Services, Preterm Clinic, Manchester

VNA and the Seacoast YWCA.

'  Adjunct Faculty at Seacoast Colleges including Granite State College
and Southern NH University

1991 Passed all parts of the CPA exam

2009 Graduate Certificate in Fraud Examination

2005 Southern New Hampshire University
M.S. in Accounting

1990 Mclntosh College
A.A. in Accounting (3.9 average)

1973-1975 University of NH,
graduate work in business administration

1964 University of NH
B.A in History cum laude

Honors &

Affiliations

Skills

References

CPA candidate(test passed, absence of public accounting experience)
Associate member of AlCPA

Certified Fraud Examiner, Member of ACFE

Excel, Quickbooks, most accounting software and 1040 tax software

Available upon request



SANDRA L. BEAUDRY

Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, NH #22

EDUCATION

Master of Science, December, 1992 Bachelor of Science, September, 1987
Marriage and Family Therapy Human Ser\'ices
University of New Hampshire University of Southern New Hampshire

CLINICAL AND SOCIAL SERVICE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

CROSS ROADS HOUSE

Portsmouth, NH January 2014 lo present
Program Director
•  Supervise Shelter and Community-Based Clinical Case Management program

•  Responsible for enhancement of programming to support residents physical and emotional well-being, self-sufTiciency, and
move to permanent housing

•  Establish inter-agency partnerships
•  Seek diverse funding, including government and private grants and the provision of reimbursable services
•  Identify and meet direct and clinical service staff training needs

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

Manchester, Concord, Portsmouth, NH February 1997 to January 2014
Program Director October 2008 to January
2014

Program Leadership and Supendsion
•  Directed statewide counseling and adolescent/young adult substance abuse treatment programs and a federally-funded

mentoring/family support program for youth being released from the Sununu Youth Services Center (joint project with
Goodwill ofNNE)

•  Supervised 14 direct report clinical staff and two interns
•  Supported implementation of Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and trauma-informed care
•  Provided supervision and clinical support to the Seacoast Street Outreach Program mental health clinician and oversaw the

mental health subcontract with the Healthcare for the Homeless program at Families First
•  Developed and maintain procedure manuals for counseling and substance abuse treatment programs
•  Oversaw quality assurance of clinical records and implementation of evidence-based practices

•  Developed, monitored and maintained program budgets that have ranged from a total of $ 1 million to $ 1.4 million annually
•  Supervised and coordinated the statewide CFS Deployment Cycle Support Program, which provided home-based counseling

and support to military service members and their families before, during, and after deployment, through a subcontract with
Easter Seals

•  Directed the Family Intervention Program, state-contracted barrier-resolution services for TANF recipients in the New
Hampshire Employment Program across the state, including four sub-contracts with Family Resource Centers

•  Provided administrative and clinical support to Healthy Marriage Responsible Fatherhood federal grant project serving
fathers in the state prison system and their families

Grants and Contracts

•  Managed or co-managed four multi-year federal grants from SAMHSA, OJJDP, and ACF, including data collection and
reporting, continuation applications, annual progress reports, and no-cost extension requests

•  Managed state contracts with BDAS, DOC, and DFA, including proposal writing and submission, data collection and
reporting, and budget development

•  Wrote or contributed to grant proposals to foundations, including grants received from Peoples United Bank for Seacoast
office-based family counseling and Healthcare Gives for mobile mental health services in the Street Outreach Program

•  Developed proposals and received funding from United Way agencies across the state
•  Wrote proposals to municipalities, including the city of Portsmouth, and presented to town selectman or budget meetings

•  Facilitated agency contracts with managed care companies for counseling and substance abuse treatment services and the
credentialing of CFS clinical staff

•  Provided the CFS agency administrator function for WITS, the web-based treatment, data, pay-for-performance, and billing
center for Access to Recovery and BDAS treatment contracts



Board and Community Involvement
•  Served as the staff liaison to the CFS Seacoasi Regional Advisory Board, facilitating monthly meetings and their work in

ftindraising, including the RiverWoods Gala and the Lonza golf tournament
•  Facilitated a multi-disciplinary advisory board for the CFS Adolescent Substance.Abuse Treatment program with

representatives from prevention, treatment, school and juvenile justice service providers
•  Represented CFS on the following boards: New Hampshire Alcohol and Other Drug Sendee Providers Association, Health

First (Laconia and Franklin), and Community Resource Network (Seacoast)
•  Serve as Board Secretary and Conference Registrar for the New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health
•  Arranged professional conferences in ethics and motivational interviewing for CFS and community clinical/social work staff

Program Manager June 2007 to October 2008
Managed Family Intervention Program
Marriage and Family Therapist February 1997 to June 2007
Provided assessment and psychotherapy services to individuals, couples and families in a variety of Seacoast area settings, including
community-based therapy to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity in conjunction with the
Healthcare for the Homeless program, consultation to Community Child Care Center, and critical incident response with the state
Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team. Served on the board of SeaCare Health Sendees for nine years as the mental health
representative.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS

Rochester, NH

Home-Based Clinician May 1992 to February 1997,
Provided home-based family therapy, case management, and provider consultation services to multi-problem families in Strafford
County. Taught Child Impact seminar for divorcing parents.

RESIDENTIAL AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Service Coordinator October 1988 to August 1991
Provided service coordination and individual support to developmentally disabled adults and their families.
Merrimack Vcdiey Case Management^^eam, Mass. Dept. of Mental Retardation, Haverhill, MA
Case Manager April 1987 to September 1988
Obtained and coordinated community services for developmentally disabled adults.
One Sl^, Portsmouth, NH
Coordinator of Community Residences December 1984 to April 1987
Supervised the operation of four licensed community residences for developmentally disabled adults
Group Home Coordinator February 1983 to
December 1984

Established and managed group home for four deinstitutionalized men.
Sullivan County Developmental Sendees, Claremont, NH
Assistant Residential Program Supervisor March 1982 to January 1983
ACCESS, Conshohocken, PA
Resident Manager November 1980 to March 1982
River Crest Center, Mont Clare, PA

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP AND EDUCATION

Clinical Member and Approved Supervisor, American Association of Marriage and Family Therapy
Adjunct Professor January 2013 to May 2015
Spring Semester Marriage and Family Therapy Graduate Practicum, University of New Hampshire
Teaching Assistant September 1991 to May 1992
Introduction to Human Development course, University of New Hampshire



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Martha Stone Executive Director 85000 0 0

Susan Duchcsney Finance Director 45760 0 0

Sandra Beaudry Program Director 66095 2.3 8930



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Continuum of Care. Shelter Plus Care I. Permanent SuDPortive Housing. SS-2020'BHS-04-PERMA-05

Notice: This agreiement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life Management

1.4 Contractor Address

10 Tsienncto Rd

Deny, NH 03038

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)434-1577

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

July 31,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$285,240

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractors! 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Vic Topo, President/CEO

1.13 Acknowledgement: Slate 6f New HampshirS^ounty of Rockingham

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
pm?M to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indic.atcd in block 1.12.

z

1.13.V Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Nai^andjrhlgjt>f^otaj^ia^^ of the Peaetf'xJX IVWDAA-SmOY ,
rioiofy Publk • N«w HompAirt

My Commltiloft Expirw AygoU 5,2019
State Agency Signatureicy Signature

A  , A A

O 5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

iX n . Date:
ty the^H\T>epartmenfWrttIminishyiori, uivi^on of Personnel (i/applicable) ' ^

Director, On:

1.16 Approval by th

By:

1.17 Approval by thj Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

// /J. . On:

1.18 Approv the

By:

ov^or and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State")> engages
contractor Identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. .
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractorshall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions ofExecutivc Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials

Date~^^^



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Reporf') describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, woricers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,000i>er occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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i4.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatc(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

IS. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBrr C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Hieatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Shelter Plus Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Appllcabie to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date: submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts,, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outllried in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

TMHCSNH / CLM SPG I Exhibit A Contrector Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scooe of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Shelter Plus Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Program
delivering scattered-site apartments in Westem Rockingham County for twenty-five (25)
chronically-homeless Individuals living with severe / chronic mental illness, and which Includes,
but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community Independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeleiss status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness' status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Beiief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of Imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
'  or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include threats from a third-party, such as a

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; taw
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence. Including
emails, volcemalls, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of Income that the
program participant Is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
hortielessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and Including case management services as provided In 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(li)(F);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement In 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards In 24 CFR 578.75(b), Including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as nectary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Qroanizatlonal conflict-of-interest requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Particioation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furtherinc Fair Housino bv maintaining copies of ail marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Soecified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reouirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Cbnfidentialitv. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any Individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall t>e kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subreclpient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilniing, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:
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3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR1: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor Is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the State In compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implernent a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed In Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Program participants offered the option of voluntary participation in vendor-provided mental
health and/or substance abuse treatment; and

6.2.1.2. Program participants provided with individualized treatment and care plan which includes
targeted case management needs assessment identifying goals the individual has chosen
to pursue.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Shelter Plus Care Permanent Supportive Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0005L1T001810

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care Permanent Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care:

T.2.7.1. August 1, 2019-July 31, 2020, nottoexceed $285,240

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $271,860 Typeie,

1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses: $13.380

1.2.8.3. Total program amount: $285,240

1.2.8.4. Vendor Match (25%): $71,310

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1)copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grantfundsare to t>e used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States In "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Prelect Costs; Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs; As used In this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
deterrnined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed In 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities In a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or In-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement In 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Prolect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated In Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall t>e In accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified In this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified In Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinQSUDDOrtsinvoices@dhhs.nh.aov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed In accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive Council If needed and justified.

5. Expense Eliqibiiitv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Goeratina Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than frfty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Fumiture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDDortive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53.
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of estabiishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homeiessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

513.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
^  employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including

classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-job instruction, services

that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring leaming skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants In employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attomeys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attomeys, for advice and
representation in matters that Interfere with homeless Individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homeiessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
Independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services, if the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section Is being directly delivered by the recipient or subreclpient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional llcensure or certllicatlons
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless Individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered In accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. Ah advance payrheht of the last nmbnth's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first rnonth's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent Is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking Into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds In an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leaslnc funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be In compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistance In which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subreclplents may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or In a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the ovmer agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which Is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs Include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the confractpr's, or other staff
engage In program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program. Involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job Includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program Include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and senrlces required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are memt>ers
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.
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5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determlned fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last morith's rent, the Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, In an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord In
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified In 24 CFR 576.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Referto 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to Itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding^he
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Intemet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management Svstem

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
v^ich assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut^ontractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
f^eral regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event faiiure to make
such repayment shaii constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibiiity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligibie for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibiiity records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractpr in the performance of the Contract, and ail
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ail records of application and
eligibiiity (including ail forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shaii retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Govemments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shaii have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: in addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shaii be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shaii return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shaii be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their officiai duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, hi^
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefolloNving
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-aiiovrable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be perfonned after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AH materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performancie of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification fonrt to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
follovring shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing; In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as descrit>ed in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use 8ut)contractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the 8ut)contractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
wiUi those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate '

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's perfonnance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract yvill not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, Generai Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditionai Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
m^ifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG»FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wohcptace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certific^on:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - COI^RACTORS

this certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WoricptaceActQf 19^ (Pub. LI00-690, Title V, SubtitieDiAl U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regutatioris were arriended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and requirb certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grant^s and sul>
contractors), prior to award, that they \Mil maintain a drugrffee wodtplace. Section 3017.63b(c) of the
r^ulatipn provides thiat a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contr^prs) that is a State
rhay elect tP make one certificatibn to the Departrhent in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal ifiscal year covered by the certification. The certiftcate set out below is a
matertal representation of fact upon '^Ich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant, False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds.fof suspension of payrhents. suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this fbim should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Departrhent of Health and Hiiihan Services
129 Pleasarit Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will coritinue to provide a drugrfree worlcptace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispehsirig, ppssessioh or use pf a cphtrotled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for vipl^on pf such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2; i. The darigers of drug abuse in ̂ e wori^lace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintainirig a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and ernplbyira assistarrce ptpgrams; arid
i .2.4. The penalties that rhay be irhposed upon erhployees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy pf the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emplbyment urider the grant, the emptoyee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; arid
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violatiort of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparag^h 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted erhployees rhust provide notice, ihduding (rosition title, to every grant
officer pii whose grant activity the convicted eniployee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initiata
Workplace Requirerhents
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with resped to any erhployee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to end Including

terrhlnation, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to rnaintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

the Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
Vendor Name: Center for Life Management

rTSte ' Name: VicTopo,
Title: Presiderit/CEp

Exhibit D - Ceftfflcstlon reg^ng Drug Free Vendor Inltiels
Workpiece Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identlfleci In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 16l*i 21, Government wide Guidance for New RestrictioiiS on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s r^reserltative,- es identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACtORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Pmgranris (Indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Neiedy Families under Title iV'A
'Child Support Enforcerhent Program under Title IVO
'Social Seiylces Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medi^id Program urider Titje XIX
'Cbmrnuhity Services Block Grant under TiUe VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by of ori behalf of the undersighed, to
any person for Influencing pr attemptlrig to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memter of Cof^gress in
connection with the a\rarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewl, arnendrhent. or
fnodificatibn of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or 8ut>^ntractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any perspn for
influencing or attefnpting to Influence an officer of employee of any agency, a Merhber of Congress,
an officer of employee of Cbtigress, or af^ employee of a Member of Congress in cofinectipn with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Forrn LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with to instructions, attached and identified as Standard B^ibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shad require that the language of thjs certfficatibn be included in the award
document for subrawards at all tiers (Indudlng subcontractsi. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This Mrtification is a fnateriaj representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this tfansactipn
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite fOr making or entering into this
tranraction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Cpde. Any person who fails to file the reqiJired
certifiication shall be subject to a civil penalty of riot less than $10,000 and not more thari $1()0.000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Narne^ jhe Mental Health Center fOr SOutheni New Hampshire
d/b/eJCLM Center for Life Management

VicTopo,
Trtle: PrOsident/CeO

ExNbit E - Certification Reoarding Lobbying Vendor Inidaia
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debamtent,
Sus^nsion, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to Kave the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gerieral Provisions execute the following
Certificatibri:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By sigriing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prirnary participant te providirig the

certification set put below.

2. The inabiiify of a peleon to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certific^n or e)^lanatlon will be
considered in connection with the NH pepartmerit of Health and Hurnan Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this trahsactior). Hoover, failure of ̂ e prospective primary
participant to furnish a certifrcation or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partici^ion in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter irito this trafrsaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
prirnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certifteation, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transactioii for cause pr default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is subrhitted if at any tirhe ̂ e prospective primary participant Irams
that Its certificatibn vras enonebus when submitted or has become erroneous by reasori of changed
circunistahces.

5. The terms 'covered transactibn.' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' 'Ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant,' 'person.' 'pnrhary covered transaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used In this clause, have the meanings set out iri the Definitions and
Coverage sections bf the rules implernenting Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions^

6. the prospective primary participant agrees by submittlrig this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly eriter into any lower tier covered
transactiori with a person whp is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered tierisactiori, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in ell lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transactiori may rely upon a certification of a prospective partictparit in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debark, suspended. Ineligible, pr involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it kribws that the certification is erroneous. A participant rnay
decide the method and frequency by ̂ ich it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not requir^ to. check the Nonprocuirement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregpirig shall be coristrued to require es^blishment of a system of records
in order to rerider irS good faith the certification required by this clause. Trie knowledge and

F - CertiflcaSon Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other RespofisibPity Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant in a
covered ̂ risactlon knowingly eriters into a lo^f tier covered transactbn with a ̂ rson who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transacton, in
addKion to other rem^ies available to the F^eral government, DHHS may terminate this tranMctioh
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRAN^CTiONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it ar>d its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered, transactions by any Federal department or agency;
i 1.2. have riot withb a thresHyear period preceding this proposal (coritract) beeri convicted of or had

a cMI judgmeiit rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connc^bn with pbtairiing, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public ̂ nsactibn; violation of F^erai or Stete antitrust
statutes or commission of erhbezzlement. theft, forge^, bribery, fblsification Or destruction of
records, maiking false dements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for pther^se criminally or civiily charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offerises enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have hot within a three-year period preceding this application/prpposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statemerits in this
certificattoh, such prospective participant shaD attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, ias

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debari^, sus^nded^ proposed for detorment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2, where the prospective lo^r tier participant is unable tocertify to any of the alroye, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause erititled 'Certification Regarding Debarrhent, Suspension, Ineligibllity. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Trahsactioris.' without modification |n all lower tier covered
triansactioris and iri all soiicitatiohs for lower tier covered trahsactiohs.

Vendor Narhe: The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
CLM Center for Life Management

yame: \/jQ Topo,
Title: Pfesident/CEO

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debaiment, Suspension Vendor tnitlab \/
And Other Resporislblllty Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contactor's
representative as identified In Salons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, end will require any sut^rantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondisdrimination requlreihents, which rhay Incjude:

- the Omnibus Crime Cpntrbi end Safe Streeto Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute frorri discriminating, islther In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sax; The Act
requires certain irieciplente to produce ah Equal Erriploymeht Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preverition Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Greets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
tenefits, on the basis of rece, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employrhent Opportunity Plan r^uir^ehts;

- the Civil RIghte Act of 1964 (42 U.S:C. Section 2b0dd, ̂ich prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance frorh discr^lhating on the basis of race, cojor, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibjts recipients of Ffsderal financial
assistance from di^r^lnating cfn the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any pipgram or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), whjch prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employroent, State and local
gbvertrmerit services, public accomrnodations, corrimerciat facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), whjch prohibits
di^rimihation on the basis of sex in federally assisted education prbgranris;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimlnatibn on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does riot Include
imployment discriitiinatlori;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); ExecirtKre Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 135iS9. which provide fundamental principles arid pblicy-maKing
criteria for partnerships with feith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Departarient of Justice Regulations ̂  Equal Treatrnent for Faitti-Based
Organizations); and Whistlebiower protections 41 U.iS.C. ̂ 712 and the National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pibt Program for
EnharicOment of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects empby^ against
reprisal for certain whistb btawing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon ̂ Ich reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certitication or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspenslpri or
debartnent.

Exhibit 6
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In the event a Federal or State couh or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contfacting agency of division within the D^artment of Health arid Hurhan Services, and
to the De^rbnent of Health and Human Services OfRce of the Onftbudsntan.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisidris agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificatipn:

1. By signing and submitting ̂ is proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisiohs
indicated above.

Vendor Namejr T|M(Mental(Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management

/jyynf ^
C^ate Name: VicTopo,

Title: President/CEO

ExhIbitG

Vendor (niUals
C<rtBte«lonotCo(tipi»K>wW>t<9ii«wnttpt(ttWnBtoF«diiilNondtoqlB*irtoo.Eque Tiwuenl el Fafl^Beeed Org*«ziecni

endWWrtiCtowf pfdwtteni
tmn*

Rev. 10121/14 Pege 2 of 2 Oete



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTA^ TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmential Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted |n any portion of any I door facility o<i^ed or leased or
contracted for by ian entity anid used routinely or regularly for the pi^ vision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age oH 8, (f the services ar funded by Federal prograrns either
directly or through State of local gpvefnmehts, by Federal grant, co
law does not apply to chlldrefi's services provided in private reslder :e$. facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, arid portions of facilities used for inpat snt drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the jaw may result in the impostor of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1 boo per day end/or the imposition of ah adminlstfatiye complianc t order on the responsible eritlty.

re «The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prpvtsioris ag
representative as identified In Section i.li and 1.12 of the Genera
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to
aQ applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C.

Vendor Name:

Name: Vic Tof o
Title: Presidont/'

, by signature of the Contractor's
Provisions, to execute the following

make reasonable efforts to comply with
<nown as the Pro-Children Act bf 1994.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
c b/a CLM Center for Life Management

CUA3HHSni071S

Ejdiibit H - Csfttfic^on Regardin
EnvironmenUI Tobacco Sfnoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor Idehped In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually (deniable Health Informatiori, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to buslrie^ associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shalj mean the Veridor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under th|s Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Depar^eht of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. -Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Ehtltv" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set' shaU have the same meaning as the term "deisignated record seT
in 45 CFR Section 1M.5bl.

e. 'Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the temi "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Infohnation Technology for Econornic and Clinical Health
Act, TitieXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pubjic Law
104-191 and the Standisrds for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual* shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "indjvldual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance wi^ 45
CFR Section 164.501 (g).

j. "Prtvacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
bepartrhent of Health and Human Sen/ices.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same rheaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Busiriess Associate from of on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExNbltl Vendor Initials _
Health Insurance PortabUtty Act
Business Associate Agreement /f /
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Sectioh 164.103.

rn- "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Hunian Services or
hl^er deslgnee.

n. 'Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and arnendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information* means protected health information that |s not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indeclpheratile to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the rheanirig
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and DIscldsure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, malntairi or ̂ nsmtt Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outliniErd under
Exhibit A of the Agreernent. Further, Business Associate, including but not jirnited to all
its directors, pfficers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper rhanagement and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to foe terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Asspdate is permitted under the Agreement to disdose RHI to a
third party, Businesis Associate must obtain, pHpr to making any such disdbsure, (i)
reasonable assurances from foe fojrd party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or forther disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disdpsed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Asspdate, in accordance v/ith the HiPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Asspdate shall not. unless such disclosure |s reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PH| in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, y^thput first notifying
Covered Entity so foat Covered Entity has an pppprtunity to object to foe disdbsure and
to seek appropriate relief If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendorlnltiais
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Associate shali refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business As^ciate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Pnvacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shaii be bound by such additional restrictions and shall riot disclose PHI in violation of
such additionat restrictions and shalj abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllaatloris and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becorries aware of any use or disclosure of prot^ed
heaith iriforination not provided for by the Agreemerit iricluding breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have ari impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becbrnes
aware of any of the above sitijations. the risk assessment shajl include, but not be
liriiited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was niade;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the firidirigs of the risk assessment |n vriitlng to the
Covered Eritity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shajl miake available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use arid disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate oh behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's coriripliarice witii HIPAA and the Privacy arid
Security Rule.

e. Busiriess Associate shall require alj of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree iri writirig to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI coritained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shali be considered a direct third party beneficiary pf the Contractor's buisiness associate
agfeerrients with Contractor's intend^ business associates, who virili be receiving

3/2014 ExWbltl Vendor InitW#
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pursuant to thiis Agr^ment, wHh rights of enfbrcernent and jndemnificatioh from such
business associates Who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protect^ health Information,

f. Within five (5) business da)« of re^ipt of a written request from Cpver^ Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and proc^iires relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to deterrhine
Business Associate's cornpliahce with the terms pif the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shaN provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Se^on 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writteri request from Cpvered Entity for an
ameridment of PhI or a record about an individual contained \n a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such arnendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill ife
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1M.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a ̂ tten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Ihfoimatipn as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward siich request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of fesponding to forwarded requests. However, if fPnwarding the
individual's request to Covered Ent% would cause Covered Entity or ̂ e Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the indtviduafs request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Within ten (10) business days of terrnination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return pr destroy, as specified by Coyered Ehti^, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in corinection witti the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
desthjction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreernent, Business Associate shall continue to e^end the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction ihfeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Buslne^ Associate destroy any or ail PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

<4) Obligations of Covered Entttv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes of iimttation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordarice with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI rnay be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Coyer^ entity shall prpmptty notify Business Associate of any resections on use or
disclosure of pH| thst Covert Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 1^.522,
to the extent that such resection may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of stendard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity rhay immediately terminatb the Agreerhent upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associae of the Business Assodate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrhediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an pppormnity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reguiatorv References. All terms used, but npt otherwise defined herein,
shall have tiie same meaning as those teims in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time, A reference |n the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means tiie Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendments Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes iri the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Owriershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has hp ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree ttiat any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resol^
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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e. SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per8on(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destnictiori of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreerherit in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of sec^ph (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed mis Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Mental Heatth Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management

State Narhejof the Vendor

Si^ature of Authonzee Kepresentative

Name of Authorized Representatr

Titf^ of Authorized Representative

Represer^tive Signature of AuiffoTized Representative

VicToDO

Date

Name of Authorized Representative

President/CEO . . .

Title of Authorizeki Representative

eg/, ̂ / f

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 arid awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive cornpertsatlon and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award ̂ ual to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requiiements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Suba^rd and Executive Comperisation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Naine of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grarits
5. Prog^ source
6. A^rd title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of tiie entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the eritity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. Moiethan 80% of annual gloss revenues are l^rii the Fedeiel government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensatiori Infoirmatbn is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is rr^e.
The Vendor identified In Sectiori 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accouiitability ar^d Transparency Act, Public Law 109-262 and Public Lew 116-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subisward and Executive Cornpensation Information), arid further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 iaiid 1.12 of the General Provlslohs
execute the fpllbwing Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees tp provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with ad applicable provlsioris of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor N^me: Mental Health Center for Southem New Hampshire
CLM Center for Life Management

/fipfe / / Name: VicTopo,
TttiA- PrMiHpntTitle: President/CEO

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Fundlrtg V^or initials.
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) CorripUance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beioiw listed questipris are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: nflSS7aS4i

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, djd your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. ̂ eral contracts, subcontracts,
loans, Isrants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreerhents; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontract, bans, giants, subgrants, and/or
coo^ratlve agreemients?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fbliowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 19M (IS U.S.C.76m(a), 760(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
198i5?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the ansvrer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Narnp:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Ampunt:

Arhount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUA)HHSni0713

Exhibit J - Certification R^arding the Federal Furvling Vendor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials,
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a rretwprk that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (design^, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wilj be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherat:)le to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
includirig but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHi in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 1(V09/18 Exhibit K Contractor inltiais
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notlftes the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Enciyptioh. If End User is transrinlttihg DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Cpntractpr attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert kno^edgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transrnissjOn via the internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User rnay only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by ernail addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to ̂ nsmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and ttie^b site rhust be
secure. SSL encrypts data tiensrhitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifi^ ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private net^rk (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
trahsnriitt^ or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-detetion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor wiil have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/MITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for ariy changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumlshed by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and t>eing
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notvrithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hairipshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on April 17, 1967. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61791

Certificate Number: 0004489154

O®

A-

BSm

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CLM CENTER FOR LIFE

MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 30, 2003. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concemed.

Business ID: 442328

Certificate Number: 0004489718

ss
fi/.

u;

%
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. .Judith Ryan. do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of. _CLM Center For Life Management
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on„
(Dat^

RESOLVED: That the .Vic Tope.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of

the day of p 2^9.
(Date Cofett^ct Signed) ^

4. .Vic Topo. is the duly elected President/CEO
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of_Rocklngham

(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Simature Officer)of cted

The forgoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this davoT^^!^:;^ . 20 /9,

By .Judith Ryan.
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

|N]DTARV SEAL)

'  1 WNOAA-SOEC*
.  c NetoyPi^'NwHcmpihlreCommission Expires: _M^commiutoii£z^ August5,2019

otary^PyWfdTj^shp^f tl^e^ace

NH OHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1. 2005



Client#: 1485395 MENTAHEA29

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {uwDorrrrf)

5/15/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford. NH 03110

855 874-0123

lA/^.^tfo.Ertl: 855 874-0123 WC.NoI:
k-ullL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAICI

INSURER A : FMMNpMt InMmly kitannM Co. 18058

INSURED

The Mental Health Center for Southern

NH DBA CLM Center for Life Management

10 Tslenneto Rd

Derry, NH 03038

INSURER B : «»i"l«» CenvMy 23809

INSURER C :

INSURER D;

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSR

3UBR
WVD POUCY NUMBER

POUCYEXP
lMMrt)0/YYYVl UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LiABiUTY

« CZI OCCUR
PHPK1886772 10/01/2018 10/01/201S EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000.000

CLAtMS4ilAC S260.000

MED EXP (Any ona paraort) slO.OOO

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY sl.OOO.OOO

OENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE s3.000.000

POUCY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG s3.000.000

s

A AUTOMOBILE UABtUTY PHPK1886766 10/01/2018 10/01/201S
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT

sl.OOO.OOO

X ANY AUTO
HEDULED
rros
m-OWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon) s

AUTC^^ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Par aeddant) s

X X
NC
At

PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Par acrMantl s

- s

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PU6648899 10/01/2018 10/01/201S EACH OCCURRENCE s5.000.000

AGGREGATE s5.000.000

DED X RETENTION si 0000 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETQR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICE^EMKR EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH)
H yaa. daaerttM undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bslow

N/A

WC017064748 10/01/2018 10/01/201S V PER OTH-
A RTATIITF FR

E.L. EACH ACaOENT S500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S500.000

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT s500,000

A Professional Liab PHPK1886772 10/01/2018 10/01/201S $1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramtrka SelMdida, may b« attaehad tf mora apaca ta raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Dept of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Mental Health Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WIU BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S25673923/M23971593

(E> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resorved.

Tho ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
EXTZP



rrlu^ Centerfor LifeManagemenL

MiS^iON STATEMENT

To promote the health and well-being of Individuals, families and organizations. We accomplish this

through professional, caring and comprehensive behavioral health care services and by partnering with
other organizations that share our philosophy.
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Certified Public Accountants
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159 River Road
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wwa-cpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
The Meota] Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life ManagemcDt and Affiliates

Report CD the nnandal Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Mental Health Center for
Southera New Hampshire d/b/a/CLM Center for Life Management -and Affiliates (a nonprofit
organization), which are comprised of the consolidated statements of fimmcial position as of June 30,
2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of activities, fimctional expenses, and cash flows
for the years, then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Muug€atoftJir^iosigMIt(yibrtb9FiDUtdalSttiaaeait

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements ki
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this ihcludes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the .preparation and fair
presentatioo of financial statements that are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to finud or
error.

AniBtor'tResponMiHiily

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in CovemmefU Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fî  fittm material
misstatement.

An audit inyolves perfornuog procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the' financial statements. Tlie procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the riate of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fiaud or error.

. In making those risk asses^ents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentatioo of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures'that are appropriate in
the circumstances, btit not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controi. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evahiating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Oplnian ^
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fiurly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliates as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

-1 •



Other Matters

Other Ittformatlon

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the financial statancnls as a whole.
The supplementary information on pages 16-22 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial sUtements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and ofiicr records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial stotcmcnts and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
informatioo directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additiorul procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statonmta as a whole.

Other RqMrtlng Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Octoba 16,
2018, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliates internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and odter
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conttol over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliates internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The
Mental Health Center for Southern New . Kampsbirc d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and
Affiliates internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Essex Junction, Vermont
Registration number VT092.00006S4
October 16.2018
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM'CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Posidoo

June 30,2018 and 2017

assets

Cuireot a^ts:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

- Prepaid expenses *

Security deposit

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Interest rate swap agreement

Total assets

2018 2017

S  1,640,075 S  1.060,309

864,230 874,385

144,815 116,163

80,753 93,249

11.087 11.087

2,740,960 2,155.193

3,656.665 3.808.664

48.533

I W.lgg- S 5.963.857

LIABILlTmS AND NET ASSRTS

I

Current liabilides:

Current portion of long tcnn dd)t

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities

Accrued vacadon

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilides

Long term liabilities

Interest rate swap agreement

PMPM rcseh'c

Long term debt, less current portion
Total long term liabilides

Total liabilides

Net assets - unrestricted

Total liabilides and uiuestricted net assets

See notes to financjal statements

S

S  88,538 S  86,038

53,554 81,794

375,055 364,814

327,657 292,305

13,319 12,500

7M0 7,580

865,703 845,031

37,053

112,737 ■

2,308^819 2.397J90

2.421.556 2.434.443

3,287,259

3,158.899

3,279,474

2.684.383

 6.446.158 S 5.963.857
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of ActiviUes

Years ended June 30,2013 and 2017

2018 2017

Public sumxjrt and revenues:

Public support

Federal S  1,005,755 S  744303

State of New Hampshire - BBH 316,921 " 518,471
State and local funding 43,602 44,601

Other public support 131.172 148,038

Total public support 1,497,450 1,455,313

Revenues:

Program service fees, net I2;J64.822 II314343

Other service income 467,403 422362.

Rental income 4,985 4,798

Other 39,231 20.038

Total revenues 12.876.441 11,962.141

Total public support and revenues 14,373,891 13.417.454

Oocratinii cxocnscs;

BBH funded programs:

Children 4,859,070 4,450,932

Elders 282,131 243,821

Vocatioaa) 234,156 229,971

Multi-Service 2.609,377 2329.607

Acute Care 775.806 745,489

Independent Living . 2,226,618 1,876,360

Assertive Community Treatment 835,083 678,106

Non-Speciali^ Outpatient 980.645 1370,779

Non-BBH funded program services 132,495 167338

Total program expenses 12,935,381 12,092,403

Administrative expenses -> 1.049,580 .  1.089.423

Total expenses 13.984.961 13,181,826

Change m net assets from operations 388,930 235,628-

Non-ot>cnitinc exDcnses:

Fair value loss on interest rate swap 85.586 148.152

Change in net assets 474,516 383,780

Net assets, beginning of year 2.684383 2300.603

Net assets, end of year i 3.158.899 S 2.684.383

See notes to financial statements
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THE MEhfTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
IVB/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAOENfENT AND AFFIUATES

ConaeUdBed Suiecieiita o f Fuacdooal

Yesn ended June 30.201S aod 2017

2018 Ml?

Prog/ant Program
ScTvfcg AdmintoTtriw Total Scrvfca Aiaistisssta Total

Pesonoel cobj:

Saleriea sod wofca S 8.271.397 S  679.212 S 8,950,609 8 7,739,427 S  708,667 S 8,448,094
Eotployce beaefits 1.770.35d 136404 1406,660 1,512,048 135,073 1,647,121
PayroU taxet / 389,194 48,580 637,774 556422 47,730 603452

Aeooimtiag/tudit feea $0,311 4410 33,421 . 52,170 9415 62,085
Advcniaiiif 18.348 2.626 21,174 8.193 702 8,897
CotifbcBoea, coovesiioes eul meetisti 27.2«2 n.4$6 38,718 20438 11,992 32,830

• Deprecutkn 186.697 18440 204,937 201.07) 20,764 221.835
Pififpmnn 14.183 1483 15468 11,094 1,146 12440
EquipTDCsl rental 38,062 2,996 41.058 47439 3,753 50,994
Itsunace 64.120 6.898 71,018 71433 7468 79,503
liXerest Gtpcoae 96.382 9.417 105,799 98,804 15,153 113,957
Legal fees 43,606 4,071 47.677 33.823 3,498 39423
Mexnbcnhip dues 48.330 8418 56448 46,938 8,670 55,608
Oocupancy openses 896.640 10,035 ' 906,695 842403 10483 852,486
Office ftepcnsa 193.164 20.508 213,672 193,435 20493 216428
Other fltpeiBes 35.224 17,866 73,090 28499 12,015 40,614
Otbs profisaiooal lea 273.798 55,7)2 329430 303,067 58,786 361453
Prognni (uppiia -  84,240 8443 93,183 123,7)9 10,843 134462
Travel 213.667 2.163 215430 197474 1470 199444

12,935^81 1.049410 13,984461 12.092,403 1,089,423 13.181.826
Adiniaistritive allocition 1.049.580 11.049.580) . 1.089.423 (1.089.423) 1

Total etpeaso 13.948J35 S -  . S 13.984 461 S 13.181.826 S  . 8)3.181426

See Qota to fiDtacitl Miaacnts
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFOJATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

'  Years ended June 30,2018 and 2017

Cflah flows from operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciadon
AraortizatioD of loan originadcD fees included

in interest expense

(Increase) decrease in:

Accoimts receivable, net

Ofrier receivables

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

PMPM reserve

Net provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

^  Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Fair value (gain) loss on interest rale swap

Net borrowing (payments) on line of credit
Net principal payments on long term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (deo'ease) in.cash and cash equivalents

Cash and f equivalentSi beginning of year
t,

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
✓  ̂

Siipplgmentfll cflsh flow disclosuTCs:

Cash paid during the year for interest

2018 2017

S  474,516 S 383,780

204,937 221,835

18,929 18,937

10,155 207,166

(28,652) 138,959

12,496 (3U06)

18.172 104,572

- (4,400)

112,737 -

823,290 1,039,643

(52.938) (32.734)

(52.938) (32.734)

(85,586) (148,152)

- (100.000)

(105,000) (102,500)

(190,586) (350,652)

579,766 656,257

1.060J09 404.052

S  1.640.075 $ 1.060,309

^  IOS-799 ?

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFPmiATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements '

June 30.2018 and 2017

Note I. Nature of orptnizatjon

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the "Agency") is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New Hampshire
law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health programs.

During 2006, the Center for Life Mwiagcment Foundation (the "Foundation") was
established to act for the benefit of, to cany out the functions of, and to assist the Agency. It
is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management through common board members and managemfflt In addition, the
Agency is the sole member.

The Mental Health Ccotcr for Southern New Hampshire d/h/a CLM Center for Life
Management and the Center for Life Management Foundation arc collect] vefy referred to the
"Organi^on".

Basis of conioliAi^i^n
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Ceota for Life Management and the Center for Life
Management Foundation- All intercompany transactions have been ebminated in
coasolidadoD.

2: BflSia of flCOQunting and summarv of significant accountiiia policies

Basis of accQunhnp

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis,
revenues, othCT than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred, without regard
to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB
Accounting Standards Codification H'ASC) Accounting for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

Basis of mesentarinn

The OrgamzatioD's financial statement presentation is required by the Not-for-ProCt
Presentation of Financial Statements topic of the FASB ASC. The Organizatioo is required
to report mformatioD regarding its financial positioD and activities according to the following,
three classificatioQs of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Unrestricted flMTtS ~ Net assets that are not subject to dooor-iinposed restrictions.

TflPPPfPnlv restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that
may or will be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.
When a restnctioa expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets and icpoited in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released
firom restrictions.

PAiikjaacntlv restricted net - Net assets subject (o donor-imposed restrictions that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donois of these
usets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related
investments for general or specific purposes.

7-



THE KIENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

June 30,2018 and 2017

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summnrv of simificant acyj""?tinR

At June 30,2018 and 2017, the Organization bad no temporarily or pennanently restricted net
assets.

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial statements and the notes
are representations of the Organization's manageraent. The Organization Is responsible for
the integrity and objectivity of the financiol statements.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contmgent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenue and expen^. Actual results could vary from the
estimates diat were used.

Cash' and cash eauivalents
The OrganizatioQ considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include savings,'
money maricet accounts, and cerfificates of deposits.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The
Orgaiiizaticn had an allowance for doubtful accounts of S224,548 and $208,878 as of June
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Refer to Note 3 for addilioaal discussion of accounts
receivable.

V

Property

Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciatioo is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated usefiil lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Automobiles

Equipment

15-40 years
3-15 years
5-7 years

All equipment valued at $500 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betlennents are capitalized.- Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciatioD, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $204,937 and $221,835 for the years ended June 30,2018 and
2017, respectively.

-8-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFIUATES

Notes to CoDSOIidfited Fiiuuicial Statements

June 30,2018 and 2017

Note 2. Bwia of Bccounting and summan^ of significant accounting poUciea fcontinuedl

Finance costo

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of positioo net of accumolated amortization. In
eccoTduce with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, (be unamortized financing costs
are reported as a reduction in long torn debt - see Note 6. The costs are amortized over the
term of the respective financing arrangemeDl.

Vacation pay and fringe benefits-
Vacation pay is accnied and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs.

Fair vahie mcasmements and financial instruments

The Company adi^ted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codiScaticD established a
common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about sucb fair value measurementa.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market partiCTpants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of vahiatioo tedmiques
that maximize the use of observable inputs and miniiuize the use of unobservable inputs.
These inputs are prioritized as follows;

•  Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•  Level 2: Observable maiicet inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets,
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

•  Level 3; 'Unobservabte inputs where there is little or no market data, ii^ch require
the rqwrting entity to develop its own assun^ions.

The Organization's financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amount of the OrganizatioD's financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.
The carrying value of long-term debt approximsles fair value due to their bearing interest at
rates that ̂ iproxlihate cuirent market rates for notes with rimilar maturities and credit
quality.

The Organization's interest rate swap agreements are classified as level 2 in the hierarchy, as
all significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly observable, such as die
underlying interest rate assumptions.

Contributions

Contributions receiviMi are recorded as increases in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions.

-9-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE ̂

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Ficancial Statements

June 30,2018 and.2017

Note 2. Basis of accounting and pimmarv of siimificant accountiag policies fcoatintied)

All donor'restricted contributions received are reported as increases in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restrictica is
accomplished, temporarilyrestricted net assets arc reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of support, revenues, and expenses as net assets released from
restrictions.

Restricted contributions that meet the restriction in the same reporting period are reported as

increases in unrestricted net assets.

Third-partv contractual arrangements
A signifrcant portion of revraue.is derived from services to patients insured by third*party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are received.
The diCference between the establi^ed billing rates and.the acttial rate of reimbursement is
recoiled an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patieot receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Interest rate swan

The OrganizatioD uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its State
Authority Bond to a fixed rate, as describ^ in Note 8., The change in the fair value of (he
sw^ agreement and the payments (o or receipts from the countcrpaity to the sw^ are netted
with the interest expense on the bonds. Cash flows from interest rate swap contracts are .
classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

.  Advenisine expenses
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incuiicd.

Expense allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated .
among the programs and supporting services beoented.

Income taxes

The Agency is a non-profit organization exempt fiom income taxes undo' Section 501(c)(3)
of the hitenial Revenue Code. The Agency has also been classified as an entity that is not a
private foundation within the meaning of S09(a) and qiialifies for deductible contributions.

Tbe Foundation is a non-profit organization exempt fiom income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is en organization that is organized and operated
exclusively for the benefit of the Agency.

These financial statements follow FASB ASC, Accouruingfor Uncertain Income Taxes,
^ich clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for fibanci^ statement recognition and measurement of
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax r^urn.

- 10-



THE MEhfTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Coosolideted Financial Statements

June 30.2018 and 2017

Note 2.

Note 3.

Baais of accounting and summary of gienifiaint aecountrng ooliriM fcontiauedl

Accounting for Uncertain Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Organization believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that could have
an effect on its financial statements.

Federal Form (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years
2015,2016 and 2017 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
filing..

Reclassificatjona

Certain amoxmts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassificd in order to be
comparable with the current year presentation.

I

Subsequent events

The Organization has evaluated all $ubse<]uent events through October 16,2018, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Accounta receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,;

3018 jm.

Receivable

AWQUaU rCWYabffi Rtcelvable Allowance
CUents S 332,312 S (179,244) $
Insurance companies 144,808 (6.476)
Medicaid 540,750 (33,213)
Medicare 70.908 (3.615) _

lid
153,068
138,332
505,537

Jim

Receivable

faCClYablC Allowahoe Net
S 310,035 S (161,421) S 148,614

136.783 (3,018) 133,765
494,240 (29,656) 464,584
1412115 (14-783) 127.422

11,Q88.778 8 (224 548) 8 864J730 81.083:263 8 (208 878) 8 874.385

Other recgivahlM

Towns

NH Division of Mental Health

Contractual services

Note 4. Concentrations of credit mlr

2018

18,600
87,680
38J35

2017

23,000
64,982

28.181
144.615

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
- consist of the following:

Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in

southern New Hampshire

Other receivables due fiom entities located
in New Hampshire ■

2018

864.230

2017

874.285

mm 11^
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE NIANAOEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Jime 30,2018 and 2017

Noted. Concentrations of credit risk fcontinuedl

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (TDIC*) for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Organization had approximately
$1,212,400 and $655,600 in oninsured cash balances.

Note 5. Property

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

Land

Buildings and improvements
Automobiles

Equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

2018

S  565,000
3,977,453

20,000

6,008,647

Note 6. Long term debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30,:

Series 2015 New.Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond •

Payable through 2036, original principal of
$3,042,730, remarketed and sold to People's
United Bank at a variable rate, with an efTective
rate of 2.8169% and 2.17385% at June 30, 2018

and 2017, respectively. Secured by land,
building, equipment, and certain revenues,

• end is subject to certain financial covenants.
The note matures August 2025. The
Organization has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement to efiiectiveiy fix the interest
rate on the note. See Note 8.

Less: unamortized finance costs
Long tenn debt, less unamortized finance costs
Less: current portion of long term debt
Long term debt, less current portion

2018

2,755,230
1357.8731

2,397,357

2017

$  565,000
3,959330

20,000
1411^79

5,955,709
147.0451

^  3.808.664

2017

2,860330
(376.8021

2,483,428
(86.0381

^  7 308 819 i 2397390

In 2017, the Organization retroactively adopted the requirements of FASB ASC 835-30 to
present dd^t issuance costs as a itductioo of the carrying amount of debt rather than as an
asset.

Amortization of the finance costs is reported as interest expense in the financial statements.
Amortization of $18,929 and $18,937 is reported as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of activities for the years ending June 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

• 12-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 6. Long tcnn debt fcoatinuedl

Future maturities to long term debt are as follows.*

Year endmp Jupe 30

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total ■

Long Term Debt Unamortized

Pria^ipa) Finance Costs ^

107,500
112,500
117,500

122,500

127,500
2-167.730

(18.962)
(18,962)
(18.962)
(18,962)
(18,962)

(263.063^

.88,538
93,538
98,538
103,538
108,538

S  2.3Q7.3S7

Note 7. Line of credit

As of June 30,2018, the Organizatioo had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $850,000, which is available through March 29,2019. Interest
accrued on the outstanding principal balance is payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal
I^c plus 1.50% (effective rale of 6.00% at June 30,'2018). The outstanding balance on the
line at June 30,2018 was $0. TTic line of credit is secured by all business and real
estate.

As of June 30,2017, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $850,000, which was available through March 2018. Interest
accrued on the outstanding principal balance was payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal
I^e plus 1.50% (effective rate of 5^5% at June 30,2017). The outstahding balance on the

.  line at June 30,2017 was $0. The line of credit was secured by all business and real
estate.

Note 8, Interest rate swap

During 201.6, the Organizatioo enteric into an interest rate swap agreement with People's
United Bank that effectively fixes the interest rate on the outstanding principal of the Banks
term note at 3.045%.

Under the arrangement, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the
Organization receiving floating payments of one month London InterBank Offered rate
("LIBOR") plus .69% and paying a fixed rate of 3.045%.

The agreement matures August 2025 and has a notional amount of $2,755,230 and
$2,860,230 at June 30, 20 i 8 and 2017, respectively.

•13-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to ConsolidAted Fioancial Staiexncots

June 30,2018 and 2017 ]

Notes. Interest rate awan fcontinuedl

In accordance with Generally Accqited Accounting Principles, the intoest rate swap
agreement is recorded at its fair value as an asset or liability, with the changes in bur vahie
being rqwrtcd. as a component of the change in unrestricted net assets. For the y^ ending
June 30,2018 and 2017, the OrganizatioD reported an interest rate swap asset of $48,533 and
liability of $37,053 on the statement of financial position and a fair value gain / (loss) on the
interest rate sw^ of $85,586 and $ 148,152 on the statement of activities, respectively. The
fair value gain / (loss) is reported as a non'Operating expense of the Organization and is a
non-cash transaction.

Note 9. Emolovee benefit olan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make cootributioos to the plan up to the maximum amotmt allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions totaled $99,861 and $94,737 for the years ending
June 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

Note 10. rftmrnltrnwitji and cftntingeiides

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/s CLM Center for Life
Management, has entered into an agreement with Parkland Medical Center ("PMC") of
Derry, New Hampshire, which requires that CLM provide psychiatric services and
consultations to inpatients of PMC for the hospital medical and nursing staff. The
consultations are requested by the hospital and responded to by CLM medical staff on an on-
call basis.

In addition to the psychiatric servi^ CLM provides emergency mental health assessments,
evaluations, end referral services to the emergency department ("£D") of the hospital. CLM
emergency service clinicians arc available on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week basis to
see patients entering the ED who are experiencing a mental health crisis or psychiatric
emergency. •

The original agreement expired May 31, 2018, however, a new agreement was effective July
1,2018. The new agreement is effective for an initial one year term and may be renewed for
up to two additionaJ one year terms.

For the yean ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency received approximately 72% and
67%, resfKctively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
State of New Hampshire designated Coomunity Mental Health Center affords the Agency
Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Departznent of Health

,  and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides abase allocation of state general
funds Bn taken as grant funds which are drawn as related expenses are incxtrred. Medicaid is
comprised of 50% Federal funds and 50% New Hampshire State matching funds..

14



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2018 and 2017

Note 11. cffnimitnifnii

The Agency leases facilities and multiple copier agreements under various operating leases.
Rent expense recorded under these arrangements was ̂proximately $157,000 and $141,000
fortheyearsendedJune30,2018aod201-7Yrespectively. .

The following details the future minimum lease payments on leases with an initial or
remaining term of greater than one year as of June 30,2018:

Year ending June 30.
• 2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Total

S  120,612
12,316
2,157
2,157
2.157

s_mm
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ASSETS

CujraXtssdi:

Cub cub estunknti

Aecoifflti reodviUe. set

OUtaraedvibfej

Prepaid capoau

SccwiQr dcpetit

TooJ ciirraat taea

Property nd equipoKBt, oet
Other oseti:

[ntnm iBtBOwtp iptcoesi

Total UKO

UABiLrnT=s ANn kbt assets

Current lubilitio;

Cujiail ponioa ofloo(-lcne debt

Aeeoonti peyibb

Aooued poyreO etd ptyroU liabOhia

Aecfoed TKidea

AcKJUoJ cipcoxj

Ocfared revenue

Total CBJiQti tnhilttia

loaf ton liaWitwy

PMPM reserve

Loag-teno-d^ kn cuneat portko

TotaHong tcnn labflhin

Total Usbfiities

Net assets • mresalctBd

Total liabilities md narestneied oet assets

See todepeadeut Auditar's Report

TWB bOTTAL HEALTH CDTTER POR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
CVB/A CLM CENTER POR UFB MANAGEMENT AND AJTILIATO

CoDcoiiditins StitcsMBl of Poehieo
/uM)0.20lt

CmtrbrlMt CLM

MirnitttagH Focmditign

S  1.429,298 s 210.777 S  1.640.075 S •  S 1.640,075
864.2M

• 864.230 864,230
144.815

• 144,815 144.815
eo.Tjj 60,753 80,753
ilD87 . 11.087 HUM?

2,530.185 210,777 ^740,960 2.740.960
3.456.665

• 3,656^665 3,636,665

48J33 . 48J33 48333

8  62J5.381 1 210.777 S 6.446.158 S S 6.446lI58

S  18.538 $ $  88,538 i S  68,538
53.554 33JS4 53334

375.055 375,035 373,035
327,657 niAsi 327,657
13,319 13JI9 13319
7J80 7J80 7380

865,703 .  865,703 863,703

112,737 112,737 112.737
2J08.819 2J08.819 2J08.8I9

2.421.556 2.421J56 .  2.421336

3,217,259 3,287,259 3JS7339
2.948.122 210.777 3.158.899 3.158.899

L  i 210 777 1 6-446 1 58 $ •  L 6.446.138
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THE MEKTAL HBALTM CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

IVB/A CLM CENTER FOR UFE MANAGEMENT AND AFTIUATF^
CoasoUdatiDf StttOBCOt of Pof itioB

June 30,2017

CcnterftrUlb CLM

MtwwBwrt Foandation

ASSETS

Currau asaets:

Cftsb uaj cuh cqdvtkatt

AoooiBits reedvabk. set

Oihei recdvsbks.'

PrepddctpeBH

Secority d^osh .

Total cmiBji issets

Piopety tod equipoxoL oa

TottJtseti

UABILrnES AND NET ASSETS

Cnncni UabtUliea:

Cunot portiaa of kng-tDm debt

AccouDts poyible

Aocfued poyioU tod poyniU liabtlhie*
Accnol vacatidn

Accrued expenses

, DefsTod revesue

Totol eunstt batiititiea

Loot (am Itabilitiea

[BtDVft nte fwip aptemeai

Lost-tOTft-tlBbt loa conoit poreioo

• Totd Mwj tens'
Teal Uabfltdes

Net asaeti • uaauktwl

Total liabilities and onreetricted (tet assets

t74,3U

116,163

93 M9

ILOff

1,972,663

3m664

irL,S30

nhnrationi CoaK>lid»ted

877.779 S 182.530 S 1.060^09 $

874J85

116,163

93,249

11.087

2,155,193

3J08.664

i  i.nun I t iMiai t_

3279.474

2J01.853

»  378'^77 5 IM53Q S 5.963J57 S

3279,474

2,684283I82J30

86.031

81,794

364,814

292J05

12,500

7.580

86,038

81,794

364,814

292J05

12,500

7.580

845,031 845,031

37,05)37,053

2J97J90 2J97J90

2.434.44)2.434,443

S  1,060209

874285

116,163

93249

11.087

2,155.193

3J08.664

S  86,038

81,794

364,814

292,M5.,
12200

7280

845,031

37,053

2297290

2.434,443

3279,474

2.684283

^ 5963J57

See Isdepcadent Auditor'i Repcn -17-



THE MEKTAL HEALTH OEhOIK FOR SOUTHERN NEW RAMPSHnE
Dm/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAOEMEKT AND AJTHiATES

CeowUditint StttemcM ofActiviciM
For t)N Y«v Bedid JtM >0.2011
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OfeB
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Oilfea

Skkn

Vottdoul

Maftt-Sovto

kcmCtn

tadiFcate Ofei.

AnB4*« Ctnnnifr Tre^Mdi

Num VtibfeuJOn^tet

NoaBBH taded pngia WMteo

Tool pragna ccpont

AieUeadn e^taaa

Toaltt^an

Cbngi ta M naca tan

HflMBBgfammuLi:
Fair nfea a feew ma twap

CkB«ifeDaaiai

Na tMs.bi(tadat tffttt
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CotsteUfe OM

Mmmsi r«iawAn^y

1.005.7)1

JIO^I

ajca

Tam

1.005.75)

4iM

1.005.7)5

jifeni

45.40].
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I2J0U22 13404423 13404423
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THB MEKTAL HEALTH <£^1^ FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMTSHIRE

DA/A CLM CEFTER FOR UFE XtANAOIMENT AND AFFILIATES

Couolidatinf StttsflMol of Acdvitkt
For the Ymt EahA Jum ]0,2019

CotsfaLUt CLM

yngggogi FcnSuta Ttttl rwwoWitWwt

PiMlf. wmwnti wiH nw.w»»> i;

Ftblki^pav
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Ote
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Toal po^ Hppot (M iwMUM
(^BUtauSBia;
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CkOttm

EMen

VoettieMi

MnU-Sorica
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Uihpiadi Urtog

AiKilKt CflOaiaby TimTiw^

MM'^SpKUiXBd 0B1p*iol

NofrBBH ftsOad inpta tsviea
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Ateiaittmi** e^MM*
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l.4l).039 42ja I.455JI) 1,455512
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I2J7S.I76 4U7t )).417.454 11.417,454

4.4)0^2 4.450J32 4.450532
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THE MENTAL HEALTH FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

IVB/A CLM CENTER FOR UFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFIUATES
Aiulyslj ofAcoonnU Receivable
For (be Year Eodad Juoe 30,2018

CUenti

losunaee eocDpenies

Medicstd

Medicare

Allowance

Total

Accoujoi CoatracTual

Receivable , AUowaaceaoad

of Other Dbcouats Choge in

Year QrmsFflca 2^0 Cflilh RPWIPB AflOWttW

S  310,035 S i;29d,l79 S

136.783 1,962,853

494.240 11,924,477

■  142,205 628,346

(208.878) ^

(364,667) $ (909,235) 5

(893.278) (1,061,550)

(1,980.508) (9,897,459)

(208,580) (491,063)

Asoounts

Receivable

Ettlof

Year

S  332,312

144,808

540,750

70,908

 ̂ .(15.670) (224,548)
S  874 J85 S 15.811.833 S (3.447.033) S (12.359.307) S (13.670) 5 864^30

See lodepeodcnt Auditoi'a Report 20-



TO MEVrAl USALTB CEVTT* km tOVTVEXN NEW HAMnKIU
bVACLMCsnaratunMANAoarfBTT '

IcMatt irrMfm l<*«M Mri bpBMi
hr Yt» bM iM M. >011

CJibX&DBQfldAlUn

iaM«f}*vIbBp^'BBB

T«Mipi>B«i^yoitt ̂  I IB

T«*>«9Ba

an»l»WM»>wnwdiw

NrnOB(**«l

OWfitoMaMI

iAjwi9»i M*- T«a

rH»im

MriO- A4tM 1 ly 1 < IpwUM 0*w AOJi. r«tf
Q^l Savitm Co Qggjgg taOn Amirv

t  luoe 1 1  t 1 «aR3 ] 724,023 i ii2jao :1  • 1 2 ijaiTu 1 t 1402,722
iMO tojo 2,000 ' 112,200 12J04 2I4J1I 216431

• -  . l4J2t 14426 42 JD 4ijat
(0 44 271 IM 2SJ lOf 41 IM 2a 4Jja 2,m 44*1*

III.I4T M 44 27^24 121^ TStJU 222.10* 100421 I2J»* l.CliOO 2.m 1.421777

JJJ7JW S2«in3 IMM ijajc MI^IO I.432J17 247JO* *o.m 773 >2444JZ2 i2j6(ja
. utic 230 214,470 ]> 23J22 47J4I 444,4U no 467J02

%3» IJOf U4 124 42* . 4412 4.5U
JOJW H* u» m f** *12 BO 200 32.40* 2JU 2*J2I

MM" 1»1J1I iJTiJio iJLOSt r.4S4J94 261JS 4»jei 41114 1247140* 4 7(2 iU71*4l

MS4JI4 U^»2 191^ TlOjUl L2I2.24) TDJDI 520.740 42410 Mjaijw 7J1* i4J0>J1l

9J»Ut2 yasrt 2SJJ0I 2J3iA4 WJW KOJIO ixoaiio injio I2>12U ijjaj22

9ni33 2SI494 47I.ftl (7U7I) <>e».f19) (4I»420 (40J70) 222.744 1.«(* 2aji2

.

t  39*^2 1 291^ t  $ 4T7.TU 1 OM7lt t fmiw 1 n«.*7»» 1

i

i

(40J70J 1 212.76* 1  *1202 2 44624*

See todepeodcnt Aoditor^ Report -2!.



THE KZKTAL HEALTH CEMTZX PQR SWTBZKX N8W RAMTDSU
tVB'A CLM CemT9l POH UFB MANAOZMDn'

Vv bMHM M ]Olt

EwmBmi

C*lbe«e.

0*e-y
rmr»

TM

TM

1 34SI430 i  12140*

40419 sxin

134JM 1X191

II4U l.iU

1404 549

9.IM 223

11I30 4,111

3429 311

1X134 *33
»,t41 U32

312II 2.131
I12K IJ14

20410 1433
1*4.101 X349

1XS<2 3414

1434 412

fijoo XH1

3X132 1,433
t9.3M 3.130

44393710 21X131

?V4

Q^i

1  IMJU

MU

1^

4n

2M

iyit

91

ISJ

•JO

UOI

m

m

uu

«J90

49

ijn

im

<£S .
1>4.IM

-U£U

taiig

.1 i
*01/09

laju

1J0I

i/m

toil

UiO

4J»

■ LtO

iiflst

yfi*
uu

41X00
aj4o

JJ4»

SUM

>3491

m —
licojn

JlilSl

Oa

SII.IM

i9J»

OJ*9
ifiU

Ij7i

IJ74

IIJM

•G

JJT9

).n9

sjll

w

)J1>

icu

lUM

IJ9I

I1J73

MP*

-U!U .

LM— Xcatai (teaias JBjQB
TiM

AJmcT

S l«CX2»4 I MJI)

Mi.7» lltMl
1

11J19

UU

UK

2JI9

31^

3J37

4431

».m

1I4U

3J4»

94M

tMJfi

3am
240

5X913

Ija

sam

3ja

I.U3

3JU

1X331'
939

>433

34S4

U»

a«9»

va

1111

2X190

un

11993

>439

913400

-iUfl

03-3*0 T4ir}
XX2Mlt 13X00

iiua oim

 3 *49431 3 *1900 s 1211491 t  *19412 1 1950409
1  12X191 11440 1,71043* 13*404 1401*6

4*444 4411 56,194 4156 UI.TM
3449 *30 512» 4410 JXI71
I4W 424 1149* XC* 21922
3420 >33 2146 1143* 31111
>4404 ' X4I( 111*91 >1240 204431
>w il4 IIIO >46 >54*1
34*0 319 3106 UN 4I4H
4J*I 1423 *3441 IBt 10445
146 1449 9130 9411 10X199
3431 1421 4XK* 4411 47471
3421 xm 4430 I4>l 5156
2X3*2 •493 6*4*3 HOU 90*46
■ID* L4« 19X134 3046 3IXM2
X439 111 2X*|4 I14M 6450

21JM 3454 21X46 6.7M 1212)1
1X16 *0 •4440 l>43 n,iu
JJ19 Ll«3 3111*

901*45 910*9 1X61933 •44946 1X941435
11*3 _?/n I449JI8 (I449JI0I0  .ggg > » mm i x^t.im s owoio > ix»ft4to t iwjia iixxtjw £ 1 13.943433

See lodepcDdest Auditoi'f Repoit • 22-



Ron Lague
Chairpenon

Elizabeth Roth

Vice Chair

Judi Ryan
Secretary

Jeffrey lUnd, MD

Gail Corcoran

Vic Topo
President & CEO

Vemon Thomas

Susan Davis

David Hebert

James Morgan

Maria Gudinas

n  Centerfor Life
Management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS FY2019

Christopher Peterson,
MD



VICTOR TOPO

President/Chief Executive Officer

fn nhio^H ^ community mental health organizations locatiSm Ohio and New Hmpshire., Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus on mission and

radhZfirh • f r' u to delivering traditL^ ̂ d n^ntraditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowle.dge,;a^ife(perience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include: '

•  . • Board Collaboration

I Team Reinvention . join, ventures and strategic partnerships. Team building and leadership • Strong relationship with ftmders
• Strategic planning , Community building

Professional Experience
Center for Life Management-Derry,NH ,000 t>
President/Chief Executive Officer vyy Present

o'' ^ comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding50 (c) 2 coiporation. entitled West Rock Endowment Association. Began with revenues of 6.5

th!le°to^x '^"tructured senior management increasing direct reports from
Key results:
•  Consolidation of three outpatient ofTiccs into one newly constructed 28 000 so ft

facility. , .
•  Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public

relations strategy.
•  Guided Board of Directors toward more accountability including higher expectation

from management and individual board members.
•  Initiated and created Fund Development which then led to creation of CLM

Foundation.

•  Initiated and implemented Corporate Compliance Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer.

•  Facilitated joint venture with Manchester Mental Health Center involving medical
services.

Created and implemented strategy to integrate mental health care with physical health
care.

•  In partnership with CIO, developed and successfully implemented first in the state
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAISCE.

Pathways, Inc.-Mentor, OH 19SS.1Qoq
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Stated with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach. ® ̂ «i«uvu

Key results: '
•  In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio's first 24 hour 7 days

a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

•  Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to our



VICTOR TOPO
•Page 2-

Positioned organizadon every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services.that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.Created county's only Atypical Ncuroieptic Medication Program (e g Clozarin
Pathways first long range strategic plan in 1992.
Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431 210 in 1997 ^

vli'-

Community Counseling Center - Ashtabula, OH
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager ivoJ-iySM

Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital

Key results;
•  Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.
•  Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.

•  Designed and implemented agency's first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelorof Arts (BA)
Siena College, Londonviiie, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS

Heritage United Way - Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission - Co-Chair

Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee - Co-Chair

Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program - Graduate, Class of 2001



iMicbaelJ. Bcrgeroo

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE:
• tUrty-five p]u3 years of extensive clinical background and skills combined with proven

admfaustretivc and firffincini managemeat expdicnoe. Reputation for high integhty,
loyahy, dq)endability» hard wori; dedication, atteatioD to detail, end goal achlevaneot
Proven history of suocesafiil program development

EXPERIENCE:

CUVf Center for Life Majtagementj Salem, NH 9/99-Praent
Vke President, CUefFinandsl ODSeer
• Bxecutrve/administrative reqjonsibilily for Finance. Accounting, Accounts Receivable.

Accounts Payable, Payroll, rad FacUitics/Opcralions. Primary respomibilitiea for fiscal
management apd imd rcgulatory.oompliance, budget development, mnni'tftrfng
and management, state &. vendor contractiag, employee benefits negotiations, facilities
management and financing, board reporting, aod lender relations.

CXM Center for Life Management, ̂alem. NH 11/87-9/99
Director, Case MaDflgement Services
• Complete ftdminfirtrative, q)eratioaaj, and siyerviaoiy responsibility for the initiaJ

development and oi^mg management of discicte ca^ management services within the
context of a multi*discipiinary treatment team model of community support programs.
Led the expansion of this service to all populations, and guicM tnmsfimnaticn fiom a
flilly ftmdcd. to a revenue generating service with Si A million of amual billing and
ygnificant budget stgpluses. Assisted with Che design and development of customized
network da^ase system for case management and.clinlcal desk top applications.
Responsible for Stale audits resulting in ninety^five phis percent contract compliancy
ratinp. Member of management coimcll, budget committee, strategic planning group,
mission statement work group, comisunjcation committee, TBS IPM initiative, end
invited by (he Board to die CEO search committee.

Hampstesd HospltaL, Hampstead, NH 10/76-10/87
Senior Psychlo.trle Counselor
• Provided individunl, group, and family counseling as well as milieu management services

and stm training. Instrumental in the expansion of the counseling role and
lesponsibiHty. Appointed senior counselor by the Medical Director in recognidoa ofthis
initiative and overall performance.

Pnideotiallosaraoce Company, Lawrence, MA 9/75—10/76
Spedal Agent
•  Sales and nuuiceting of complete insurance portfolio including life, health, property-
'  casualty, and retirement

Raytbeoo Company, Andover, MA 5/73—3/75
Government Property Coordinator
• Managemeat of utilization and di^sition of govemment property, facilities, tooHng, and

test equipment In accordance with contract stipulations.
Holy Family Hospital, Metfaocn, MA 6/70—6/72
Piy^latrie Counidor



•  Provided individual, group, and family counseling. Assisted with other Indicated medical
procedures such as electroconvulsive therapy, and participated in milieu managemeat and
activities.

EDUCATION:
• Nev/Hampshire ColI^e,OrBduate School of Business, Manchester, NH

M.BA Degree 1987
• ntchburg State College, Graduate School ofOuidance and Counseling, Fitchbur^

18 Graduate Hoars in Counseling . 1973

• Nathaniel Hawthorne College, Aotrim, NH
Degree 1971

UCENSES AND PROFESSIONAL AFFtLIATIONS:
• LicenscdCcrtificdSocial Worker,.Massachusett5Liceiise#3028-2-051-181
• Member in Good Standing Natiotial Association of Socid Workers

!  I

I
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Assfstint Director/
BehsvtorBl SpcciaDst

Rosldontla! Retourccs; Keone. NH 1/1669-1/1092

•  Dtredad all flscai end cflntea) acflyffiss far 5 gmtjp hnpigg pnti j wppprta)
(Mob ansngenienb serving peoptoHfihdev^C49msntBlcfisab(BiBs. Provide betovlore^ -
consutelion to Mvtduab Kith behaviorailt^^

BahdvtomlS^ectaSst/
Cfinical Supovlsor

The Center for Hurnanletlc Cherrge
Manchester. NH

6/1688-1/1989

Qtvp hon^ ̂  pfograro. vwB^ OTd fantfy setengs. $»pefvlsfld'2 cCrhfare.'

HouseManager Greater LawehcePeychologlcfll Center 6/1684-8/1986
Lav/rence, MA

• Adiaira*iitth'e,ciinici!»ndfixuDcUliBttiuigeinenioftgiouphoxheie*iog4
mes vldi MvcK tttd pmiitentmenta] OIrm*.

Adjunct Fficufly New England College; Hennlker, NH
www.nec.edu

9/1994-Present

Teach graduate and undergrafcate coureee In psychclofly, courseBng., pfogrem
devetopment and evaluation

DtrectorofMasters
Degree Program in New Er»gland College; Hennlker. NH
Mental Hea^ Counseling

1/1996 - 35002

Developed artd ImptementBd OfTlcuIijrn 6* degree prograni
Osrereigltf of curriciAen b hsure quaSly. acadernlc standanb and stddent retBn&oti
Developrnent and eracutton of marMg plaa
ftovUed aoadernte advtstng and rnenlDrbg b studerits.

recnihment, ti^>etvinoo uid monitoring of tcsdcmic quality

Cuntcutum Consultant New England'Coilege; Hennfker. NH FaB2012-

present

Developed cuntUa ly a certttcab and CAG.S. b (he iitegrafion of behavtorel toaOti
intDprtmarymadiclne.
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eoDUDoofty
Service

Cunfcuton Consuttan! endAs«od8tM;Poftsmoulh,NH F81I2008-
•.mm.bn^fB9ifttsH6.com ^1^2010

•  ««ulho^MasteraofSciBTOC3ii^

MiAoed drgt« to colkgM, wotkd-weh iedor •dminlstatbai^^tntatton, wrote courtt deicxiptioiu for academic cetik^ow, reauiced

2010-^lZ LadJudge far Wt two yean

M8$tefScrfA/b

CounseflngPeycholoffy

BechebrofArts
PsychotoCy

Board

Juiy 200Sfbwm ber 2009

Antloch New ̂ (and Graduate School
Kedne, NH

SeaCara health Servfees
WWW^gafehe^IhMrvieefi nrff

tS89

Plymouth Stele College; PlyiTioulh, NH 1984

a/2012-ftBSent

Potiutatnms

®- <20M> The Bhles ofIn^^. Po) jy end Pmctloe CoOlde. fn Hodflon, J.. Umson, A.,
Meiyei^ll. T.. Russell Crane, D. (eds) Medical FamHy Therapy; Advanced

^IW Navigating theelWc^foundatlons of Informed consent and confWentialrty In Integrated primery
caro. FBmBl0s, Systems, ̂  «ea/lh. 31, S-IO » k- /
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KENNETH M. BROWN, M.D.,M.P.H.

EMPLOVMfiNTt

1996 to Present

2012 to Present

1996 to Present

2001 to 2009

2009 to 2013

2006 to 2010

1997 to 2000

Hampstead, NHHampstead Hospital
Staff Psychiatrist

, —Evaluations, treatment, individual therapy, /amily tJierapy,"
medication management, utilization revieW,'staff development
and education, patient safety.committee for Adult. Adolescent
and Child patients..

Hampstead, NHHampstead Hospital
Medical Director Recovery Matters
-Acute Residential Treatment program for substance abuse,
disorders.

Private Practice , Hampstead. NH
-Outpatiient medication management, individual therapy,
consultation, adult, adolescent and child
"Vivitrol iniection clinic for alcohoi and opiate dependence

Hampstead Hospitai
Medical Director

Hampstead, NH

Center for Life Management . Deriy.NH
Community Mental Health Center
"Evaiuations, medication management, treatment team focus,
consultations Child and Adolescent Psychiatry and Adult
Substance Abuse

Specialized Behavioral Health Consultants

Psychiatric consultations at various contracted nursing homes In
Rocldngham County, New Hampshire

Center for Life Management , . Salem, NH
Community Mental Health Center , .
-Evaluations, medicatioA rnanagement, treatment team focus,
consultations Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

iV



BburATinm

1994 to 1,996 CHILD AND ADOLESCENT PSYCHIATRY FELLOWSHIP
University of Miami/ Jackson Memorial Hospital
Miami, Florida

1991 to 1994 GENERAL PSYCHIATRY RESIDENCY
Medical University of South Carolina
Charleston, South Carolina

1987 to 1991 DOCTOR OF MEDICINE
Tulane University School of Medicine
New Orleans, Louisiana

1987 to 1991 MASTERS IN PUBLIC HEALTH

Tulane University School of Public Health and Tropical Medicine
New Orleans, Louisiana

1983 to 1987 bachelor IN SCIENCE ENGINEERING
BIOMEDICAL ENGINEERING
Tujane University College of Engineering
New Orleans. Louisiana

198Stol986 tulane UNIVERSlTyHONQRSCHOUR YEAR ABROAD.
University of Southampton
Southampton, England

ACADEMir AFplLIATIflM

2005-Present MASSACHUSETTSCOLLECEOFPHARMACYANDHEALTHAPPLIED
SCIENCES

—Preceptor for Psychiatry rotation for Physician Assistant students

1999 - 2003 , DARTMOUTH UNIVERSITY
Lebanon, New Hampshire
Adjunct Professor in Clinical Research



RESEARCH

2000 r 2003 ACCESS CLINICAL TRIALS (sub-Investigator]

A three week multicenter. randomized, double blind, placebo
controlled, par^iel group safety and efficacy study of extended release
carbamazepine In patients with bipolar disorder. (SHIRE
Laboratories)

Athree vyeekmulticenter, randomized, double blind, placebo,
cohtrdlled, parallel group safety and efficacy study of extended release
carbamazepine in Lithium Failure Patients patients with bipolar
disorder. (SHIRE Laboratories)

A double blind, parallel study of the safety, tolerability and.preliminaiy
efficacy of ilutamide compared to placebo in patients with anorexia .
nefvosa. (VELA Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

A phase HI, randomized, double blind, placebo controlled study of safety
and efficacy of C-1073 (Mlfeprlstone) in patients with piajor depressive
disorder with psychotic features who are not receiving antidepressants
or antipsychotics. (CORCEPT Therapeutics, Inc.)

'

Olanzaplne versus Ziprasidone in the treatment of schizophrenia (Eli
Lilly and Company)

A Multicenter, randomized,.double blind study of aripiprazple versus
placebo In the treatment of acutely manic patients with bipolar
disorder. (Bristol-Meyers-Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute



PUBLICATIOWS Awn PftcTpR RRKSKMTATiftm,^

■?.upppri8n SHStainPlI Rftlc^iie in At)olf';rpht<;.with rnmnrhjd Alt«nHnn npfifit/ ttiTrnrtiHfr
Behtivoglo, RacusVn, Brovvii, et al. JAM Acad Child

•Adolescent Psychiatry, 40:3, March 200i (^m-Hcao. t,mia

A?ce'tZl'f Child ̂ nH in flilolf^cgnts with nenrpt.lon Bpstic, Prince, Brown,fjgce. Jo.umalorChildand,Adoiesc€ntPsychopharmacoIogy2001; 11; 159-166

Cltalnnram fnr thp Trfiamihnt of Adnlfi,scent Anxiety nkordprs- A p.-^^ g „
Monteaux, Brown, Place. Pharmacology BuUetln 2002; 36:10()-W7.
2001- Cl^lflpram m r^ripleSMntfi with Mlind and Anxlery ni.sorder: A rharr.Revipw
sST ^ Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association, New'Orleans, U

Me"ngofNS,Ph^^^^^^ Presented at the Annual
mi Cltalonrfim In Adnlescenrs with Mnod and CnmhrhM r^narvj^n-; Presented
SeSlces"orfanda FlVo AT''" 2001 Institute on Psychiatric
STAtEMrRW<!irpp

ACT/VE: ■ New Hampshire

INACTIVE; Louisiana
Florida

South Carolina Maine



Barry C. Quimby

BARRY C. QUIMBY

Summary: Over 18 years experience in community mental health and substance abuse treatment
Vast experience in client advocacy to access mainstream benefits/gainful employment
Knowledge of state/federal regulations and policies governing grant operations
Knowledge of HUD housing/PATH outreach and program operations

Experience:

Center for Life Management- Derry, New Hampshire June 2000-Present

^  Program Manager for Housing Development: Responsible for overseeing all HUD funding
including the Shelter Plus Care housing assistance program. Foster relations with local landlords,
Arrange for apartment inspections to meet HUD Quality Standards, Process and complete necessary
file documentation, Advocate for clients within the program to obtain affordable housing, Serve as
liaison to the local Housing Authority. Responsible for HMIS data entry, Annual renewals, APR
submission, and Quarterly reports for all HUD contracts including Beaver Lake Lodge (A HUD
funded residential program). Co-Chair to the New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Care
(BOSCOC) (Nominated November 2007) Active participant of NH-HMIS Advisory Committee and
NH HMJS Data Quality Committee. Successful recipient of a second Shelter Plus Care Good
Samaritan grant involving three agencies participating in the NH BOSCOC in 2009. Successful
recipient ofNHH Transitional Housing funds for a Permanent Housing Program 2010.

♦

♦

PATH Homeless Outreach Supervisor: Successful recipient of PATH funding to CLM.
Responsible for overseeing all aspects of program funding for outreach to homeless individuals in
Western Rockingham County. Provide outreach to identify homeless individuals suffering from
mental illness and homelessness, link to community services for which said individuals are eligible and
assist individuals engaged in obtaining mainstream benefits, housing, legal advocacy, and community
Mental Health / Substance Abuse services. Assisted in the development of Bi-State Technical
Assistance grant from SAMHSA to provide training for PATH providers on legal issues, advocacy,
program improvement, and interstate collaboration to improve services provided to homeless
individuals in New Hampshire and Vermont. Successfully initiated CLM as a pilot program in New
Hampshire for PATH data entry into NH-HMIS.

Case Manager: Responsible for the direct service planning as part of a multidisciplinary community
support team. Provide Case Management and Functional Support Services to adult clients with mental
illness. Consult with medical / clinical staff; Assist clients with identifying options for employment
and assist with job placement and maintaining employment, Refer clients to community resources;
Provide representative payee services; Promote independent functioning in the community to clients
served; Provide staff training and orientation. Served as Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) skills
group leader. Trained in DBT Therapy and active member of DBT consultation team. Serve on
CLM's Safety Committee ̂  well as CLM's Medicare Part D Committee. NH Hospital Liaison.



Barry C. Quimby

Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, New Hampshire November 1993-June 2000

*  Program Manager / Residential Coordinator: Involved in all aspects of operating a housing and
treatment program for 43 clients living in supported housing in the greater Nashua area, including
policy and regulation adherence for a 14-bed HUD-funded program. Managed 6 full-time and 21 fee-
for-service staff; Fostered relations with local affiliates; Improved the clinical sophistication of
program. Implemented training programs, assisted with grant writing, and reduced staff turnover.
HUD certified.

*  Pee-for-SctTlce Counselor: Worked 1:1 with clients to assist in overall treatment goals. Worked
with administration and management to develop policies and procedures to enhance the day to day
operations of the program. Created training packages to ensure the overall Counselor/Client
relationship is more productive and measurable for both billing and therapeutic productivity.

American Training, Lowell, Massachusetts April 1998-December 1998
*  Director: Directed all aspects of operating a supported housing program for 27 individuals

in the greater Lowell area, Including supervision of middle management and direct-care staff, policy
and regulation adherence, and fostering program relations with local affiliates.

South Middlesex Opportunity Council, Framingham, Massachusetts April 1992-April 1998
*  Program Manager / Site Coordinator: Managed all aspects of operating a group home and

supported housing program for chronic mentally ill adults. Improved program by ensuring licensure
and regulation adherence from Department of Mental Health; Created a results-oriented team
atmosphere for program efficiency; Reduced the program budget deficit during 1996 fiscal year;
Reduced the staff turnover ratio within component; Worked with local and area DMH agencies and
affiliates to improve program relations and reputation.

*  Supported Housing Coordinator: Coordinated all aspects of a supported housing program for four
mentally ill individuals. Managed staff overseeing clients while increasing program client turnover to
more independent living status; Improved client charting and documentation to ensure DMH licensure;
Improved inter-staff communication to improve efficiency of treatment.

* Residential Counselor: Worked in a program that involved transitioning mentally ill individuals from
a hospital setting into community living. Assisted in moving 25 clients from state hospital setting into
group homes located in Metro-west area; Assisted two clients in gaining skills needed to move from
group home into Independent living within the community.

Education:

Keene State College, Keene, New Hampshire Graduated May 1991
*  Bachelor of Arts in Industrial / Social / Counseling Psvcholopv

Gained Independent Study laboratory experience as a Research Assistant organizing and administrating
semantic-priming research studies at Keene Stale College. Responsibilities included designing experiments,
testing subjects, collecting and analyzing data.
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Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract
Amount Paid

from this

Contract
Vic Topo President & CEO $160,854 2.5% $4,021
Michael

Bergeron

Vice President & CFO $133,674 2.5% $3,341

Steve Arnault Vice President Operations,
Qualitv & Compliance

$118,821 3.5% $4,159

Kenneth Brown Medical Director $260,000 3.5% $9,100

Barry Quimby Homeless & Housing Manager $55,000 30% $16,500
Total $37,121
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